
If you would like help to understand this document, or would like it in 
another format or language, please call Paul James, Democratic Services 
Officer on 01432 260460 or e-mail pjames@herefordshire.gov.uk in 
advance of the meeting. 

 

 

 
 
AGENDA 
 
Children's Services Scrutiny 
Committee 
 

 

Date: Friday 11 March 2011 

Time: 10.00 am 

Place: The Council Chamber, Brockington, 35 Hafod Road, 
Hereford 

Notes: Please note the time, date and venue of the meeting. 

For any further information please contact: 

Paul James, Democratic Services Officer 
Tel: 01432 260460 
Email: pjames@herefordshire.gov.uk 

 
 

 
 



 

GUIDANCE ON DECLARING PERSONAL AND PREJUDICIAL INTERESTS AT MEETINGS 
 

The Council’s Members’ Code of Conduct requires Councillors to declare against an Agenda item(s) 
the nature of an interest and whether the interest is personal or prejudicial.  Councillors have to decide 
first whether or not they have a personal interest in the matter under discussion.  They will then have to 
decide whether that personal interest is also prejudicial. 

  
A personal interest is an interest that affects the Councillor more than most other people in the area.  
People in the area include those who live, work or have property in the area of the Council.  Councillors 
will also have a personal interest if their partner, relative or a close friend, or an organisation that they 
or the member works for, is affected more than other people in the area.  If they do have a personal 
interest, they must declare it but can stay and take part and vote in the meeting.   

 

Whether an interest is prejudicial is a matter of judgement for each Councillor.  What Councillors have 
to do is ask themselves whether a member of the public – if he or she knew all the facts – would think 
that the Councillor’s interest was so important that their decision would be affected by it.  If a Councillor 
has a prejudicial interest then they must declare what that interest is.  A Councillor who has declared a 
prejudicial interest at a meeting may nevertheless be able to address that meeting, but only in 
circumstances where an ordinary member of the public would be also allowed to speak.  In such 
circumstances, the Councillor concerned will have the same opportunity to address the meeting and on 
the same terms.  However, a Councillor exercising their ability to speak in these circumstances must 
leave the meeting immediately after they have spoken. 
 

 

Agenda for the Meeting of the Children's Services 
Scrutiny Committee 
  
Membership  
  

Chairman Councillor WLS Bowen 
Vice-Chairman Councillor ME Cooper 
  

Councillor AW Johnson  
Councillor Brig P Jones CBE  
Councillor JJD Lavender  
Councillor G Lucas  
Councillor JE Pemberton  
Councillor SJ Robertson  
Councillor RV Stockton  
Councillor AM Toon  
Councillor WJ Walling  
Mr PF Burbidge Roman Catholic Church 
Mr P Sell Church of England 
Mrs E Lowenstein Secondary School Governors 
Mr T Plumer Primary School Parent Governors 
  

 
Mrs S Catlow-Hawkins Secondary School Headteachers 
Mrs OR Evans Special School Headteachers 
Mr P Hayden The Alliance 
Mr M Harrisson Teacher Representative 
Mr C Mutton Primary School Headteachers 

 
 

  Non Voting 



 
HEREFORDSHIRE COUNCIL  11 MARCH 2011 

 

 

AGENDA 
 Pages 
  
   
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE     
   
 To receive apologies for absence.  
   
2. NAMED SUBSTITUTES     
   
 To receive details of Members nominated to attend the meeting in place of a 

Member of the Committee. 
 

 

   
3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST     
   
 To receive any declarations of interest by Members in respect of items on 

the Agenda. 
 

 

   
4. MINUTES   1 - 10  
   
 To approve and sign the Minutes of the meeting held on 10 December 2010. 

 
 

   
5. SUGGESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC ON ISSUES FOR 

FUTURE SCRUTINY   
  

   
 To consider suggestions from members of the public on issues the 

Committee could scrutinise in the future. 
 

 

   
6. REPORT ON THE RESULTS ON THE CONSULTATION ON PRIORITIES 

FOR THE CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE'S PLAN 2011 - 2014   
11 - 14  

   
 To provide an update on the consultation feedback and the next steps in 

relation to the Children and Young People’s Plan 2011 – 2014. 
 

 

   
7. REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING REPORT 2010/11   15 - 30  
   
 To report on the monitoring of the Children’s Services revenue budget for 

2010/11 at the end of quarter three.  To provide comparisons to 2009/10 
budget and outturn so that Scrutiny Committee can assess and comment 
upon the budget management of Children’s Services. 
 

 

   
8. PERFORMANCE DIGEST QUARTER 3 2010/11   31 - 48  
   
 To present the Performance Digest for Children’s Services for Quarter 3 of 

2010-2011, to update on the recommendations from the Ofsted inspection 
of safeguarding and looked after children services and to highlight key 
performance issues. 
 

 

   
9. CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE DIRECTORATE REORGANISATION   49 - 70  
   
 To update the Committee on the progress of the CYPD reorganisation and 

the development of locality team arrangements, and to report back to 
Scrutiny Committee on issues raised at the Members Seminar on 7th 
February 2011 on localities development. 
 
 

 

   



 

 

10. STANDARDS IN THE EARLY YEARS FOUNDATION STAGE AND 
STANDARDS IN THE PRIMARY AND SECONDARY STAGES - FURTHER 
UPDATE   

71 - 86  

   
 To receive an update on progress in standards in the Early Tears 

Foundation Stage and standards in the Primary and Secondary Stages.  
 

 

   
11. CAPITAL BUDGET MONITORING UPDATE ON 2010/2011 AND FUNDING 

FOR 2011/2012   
87 - 92  

   
 To scrutinise the capital budget position for 2010/11 for the Children & 

Young People’s Directorate and to receive information on indicative capital 
funding for 2011/12.  
 

 

   
12. EXECUTIVE RESPONSE TO SCRUTINY REVIEW OF PUPIL 

ACHIEVEMENT IN SWIMMING AT KEY STAGE 2   
93 - 94  

   
 To note the Cabinet Member – ICT, Education and Achievement, response 

to the Scrutiny Review of Pupil Achievement in Swimming at Key Stage 2. 
 

 

   
13. COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME   95 - 100  
   
 To consider the Committee work programme.  
   



PUBLIC INFORMATION 

HEREFORDSHIRE COUNCIL'S SCRUTINY COMMITTEES 

The Council has established Scrutiny Committees for Adult Social Care 
and Strategic Housing, Children’s Services, Community Services, 
Environment, and Health.  An Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
scrutinises corporate matters and co-ordinates the work of these 
Committees. 

The purpose of the Committees is to ensure the accountability and 
transparency of the Council's decision making process. 

The principal roles of Scrutiny Committees are to 
 
•  Help in developing Council policy 
 
• Probe, investigate, test the options and ask the difficult questions 

before and after decisions are taken 
 
• Look in more detail at areas of concern which may have been raised 

by the Cabinet itself, by other Councillors or by members of the public 
 
• "call in" decisions  - this is a statutory power which gives Scrutiny 

Committees the right to place a decision on hold pending further 
scrutiny. 

 
• Review performance of the Council 
 
• Conduct Best Value reviews  
 
• Undertake external scrutiny work engaging partners and the public  
 
Formal meetings of the Committees are held in public and information 
on your rights to attend meetings and access to information are set out 
overleaf 
 



PUBLIC INFORMATION 

Public Involvement at Scrutiny Committee Meetings 

You can contact Councillors and Officers at any time about Scrutiny 
Committee matters and issues which you would like the Scrutiny 
Committees to investigate.  

There are also two other ways in which you can directly contribute at 
Herefordshire Council’s Scrutiny Committee meetings. 

1. Identifying Areas for Scrutiny 

At the meeting the Chairman will ask the members of the public present if 
they have any issues which they would like the Scrutiny Committee to 
investigate, however, there will be no discussion of the issue at the time 
when the matter is raised.  Councillors will research the issue and consider 
whether it should form part of the Committee’s work programme when 
compared with other competing priorities. 

Please note that the Committees can only scrutinise items which fall within 
their specific remit (see below).  If a matter is raised which falls within the 
remit of another Scrutiny Committee then it will be noted and passed on to 
the relevant Chairman for their consideration.   

2. Questions from Members of the Public for Consideration at 
Scrutiny Committee Meetings and Participation at Meetings 

You can submit a question for consideration at a Scrutiny Committee 
meeting so long as the question you are asking is directly related to an item 
listed on the agenda.  If you have a question you would like to ask then 
please submit it no later than two working days before the meeting to 
the Committee Officer.  This will help to ensure that an answer can be 
provided at the meeting.  Contact details for the Committee Officer can be 
found on the front page of this agenda.   

Generally, members of the public will also be able to contribute to the 
discussion at the meeting.  This will be at the Chairman’s discretion.   

(Please note that the Scrutiny Committees are not able to discuss 
questions relating to personal or confidential issues.) 



 
Remits of Herefordshire Council’s Scrutiny Committees 
 
Adult Social Care and Strategic Housing 
 
Statutory functions for adult social services and Strategic Housing. 
 
Children’s Services 
 
Provision of services relating to the well-being of children including 
education, health and social care, and youth services. 
 
Community Services Scrutiny Committee 
 
Cultural Services, Community Safety (including Crime and Disorder), 
Economic Development and Youth Services. 
 
Health 
 
Scrutiny of the planning, provision and operation of health services 
affecting the area. 
 
Environment 
 
Environmental Issues 
Highways and Transportation 
 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
Corporate Strategy and Finance 
Resources  
Corporate and Customer Services 
Human Resources 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



The Public’s Rights to Information and Attendance at 
Meetings  
 
YOU HAVE A RIGHT TO: - 
 
 
• Attend all Council, Cabinet, Committee and Sub-Committee meetings unless the 

business to be transacted would disclose ‘confidential’ or ‘exempt’ information. 

• Inspect agenda and public reports at least five clear days before the date of the 
meeting. 

• Inspect minutes of the Council and all Committees and Sub-Committees and written 
statements of decisions taken by the Cabinet or individual Cabinet Members for up to 
six years following a meeting. 

• Inspect background papers used in the preparation of public reports for a period of up 
to four years from the date of the meeting.  (A list of the background papers to a 
report is given at the end of each report).  A background paper is a document on 
which the officer has relied in writing the report and which otherwise is not available 
to the public. 

• Access to a public Register stating the names, addresses and wards of all 
Councillors with details of the membership of Cabinet and of all Committees and 
Sub-Committees. 

• Have a reasonable number of copies of agenda and reports (relating to items to be 
considered in public) made available to the public attending meetings of the Council, 
Cabinet, Committees and Sub-Committees. 

• Have access to a list specifying those powers on which the Council have delegated 
decision making to their officers identifying the officers concerned by title. 

• Copy any of the documents mentioned above to which you have a right of access, 
subject to a reasonable charge (20p per sheet subject to a maximum of £5.00 per 
agenda plus a nominal fee of £1.50 for postage). 

• Access to this summary of your rights as members of the public to attend meetings of 
the Council, Cabinet, Committees and Sub-Committees and to inspect and copy 
documents. 

 

 

 



 

Please Note: 

Agenda and individual reports can be made available in large 
print.  Please contact the officer named on the front cover of this 
agenda in advance of the meeting who will be pleased to deal 
with your request. 

The Council Chamber where the meeting will be held is accessible for 
visitors in wheelchairs, for whom toilets are also available. 

A public telephone is available in the reception area. 
 
Public Transport Links 
 
 
• Public transport access can be gained to Brockington via the service runs 

approximately every half hour from the ‘Hopper’ bus station at the Tesco store in 
Bewell Street (next to the roundabout junction of Blueschool Street / Victoria Street / 
Edgar Street). 

• The nearest bus stop to Brockington is located in Old Eign Hill near to its junction 
with Hafod Road.  The return journey can be made from the same bus stop. 

 
 
 
 
 
If you have any questions about this agenda, how the Council works or would like more 
information or wish to exercise your rights to access the information described above, 
you may do so either by telephoning the officer named on the front cover of this agenda 
or by visiting in person during office hours (8.45 a.m. - 5.00 p.m. Monday - Thursday 
and 8.45 a.m. - 4.45 p.m. Friday) at the Council Offices, Brockington, 35 Hafod Road, 
Hereford. 

 

 

 

 

 
Where possible this agenda is printed on paper made from 100% Post-Consumer waste. De-
inked without bleaching and free from optical brightening agents (OBA). Awarded the 
Nordic Swan for low emissions during production and the Blue Angel environmental label. 

 



 

HEREFORDSHIRE COUNCIL 
 
 

BROCKINGTON, 35 HAFOD ROAD, HEREFORD. 
 
 
 

FIRE AND EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE 
 
 

 

In the event of a fire or emergency the alarm bell will ring 
continuously. 

You should vacate the building in an orderly manner through the 
nearest available fire exit. 

You should then proceed to Assembly Point J which is located at 
the southern entrance to the car park.  A check will be undertaken 
to ensure that those recorded as present have vacated the 
building following which further instructions will be given. 

Please do not allow any items of clothing, etc. to obstruct any of 
the exits. 

Do not delay your vacation of the building by stopping or returning 
to collect coats or other personal belongings. 
 



AGENDA ITEM 4

1



2



3



4



5



6



7



8



9



10



 

 
Further information on the subject of this report is available from 

Philippa Granthier, Head of Children’s Services Development on Tel (01432) 260226  

$55i3wbqf.doc 22/02/10 

MEETING: CHILDREN’S SERVICES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

DATE: 11 MARCH 2011 

TITLE OF REPORT: REPORT ON THE RESULTS OF THE 
CONSULTATION ON PRIORITIES FOR THE 
CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE’S PLAN 2011-
2014 

REPORT BY:  Head of Children’s Services Development 

CLASSIFICATION: Open  

Wards Affected 

County-wide  

Purpose 

In December 2010 the committee were presented with the partnership priorities for the next children 
and young people’s plan, covering the period 2011-2014 and had the opportunity to provide feedback. 
The purpose of this report is to give a short update on the consultation feedback and the next steps.  

Recommendation 

 THAT: the Committee note the consultation feedback and provide any further 
comments on partnership arrangements supporting children, young people and 
their families. 

Key Points Summary 

• The draft children and young people’s plan has been out to a 12 week consultation process 
before closing on the 14 February 2011.  

• The comments received in the consultation will be used to inform the final plan which will be 
published in April 2011.  

• The plan is a partnership plan and will include priorities that can only be achieved by partners 
working together alongside families and their children, to address specific local priorities for 
children and young people. 

Alternative Options 

1 This plan focuses on the top priorities that partners will deliver that will make lives better for 
families and their children in Herefordshire.  Despite the statutory requirement for a plan being 
removed, during this transition year of major changes, partners believe there needs to be a 
plan to give clarity over what we are working on together to achieve for children, young people 
and their families. 

AGENDA ITEM 6

11



Reasons for Recommendations 

2 It is important that this plan represents the needs of Herefordshire’s children, young people 
and families so consultation from a wide cross-section of the population was invited to feed 
into the final plan. 

Introduction and Background 

3  Herefordshire is entering a new, exciting era in partnership working. The government is freeing 
up local areas to decide for themselves what the important issues are that need addressing 
and how agencies can work together to tackle those issues.   

4  Partnership working for children, young people and families is developing this approach. 
Whilst the Children’s Trust Board has been the statutory body in place which governs 
partnership working around children’s services, the government is removing this requirement, 
allowing local areas to decide their own arrangements for collaboration and co-operation. Any 
new partnership arrangements will need to take into account the development of locality 
arrangements and countywide partnership arrangements such as the Health and Wellbeing 
Board. 

 
Key Considerations 

5 The new plan has been drafted based on a wide variety of data and information including: 

• “Have your say” events in September and October 2010 which allowed children, young 
people and parents / carers the opportunity to describe what is important to them. 
Children from nurseries, primary and secondary schools and young people from 
college and various youth groups were involved. Parents also gave their views. 

• Children’s Trust events with professionals who deliver and manage services for 
children, young people and their families 

• Data and information from surveys and performance indicators 
• Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA) 
• Inspections and audits from national agencies like Ofsted. 

6  There has been a 12 week consultation process which closed on 14 February 2011. Many 
professionals were able to feed in their comments through the existing Children’s Trust sub 
groups. The Children’s Trust Shadow Board (a consultative group of young people aged 11-19 
years from across secondary schools and colleges in Herefordshire) have also considered the 
plan, and what they would like to do for a children’s version. In addition a further 20 responses 
were received both from individuals and agencies.  

7 The main points coming out from the consultation included: 

• The priorities were generally the right ones. 
• The number of priorities needed to be reduced and be more focused. 
• The plan needed to address whole family approaches, support for parents and early 

intervention. 
• Certain vulnerable groups needed support eg young carers and Gypsy Roma Traveller 

although the Shadow Board said children and young people shouldn’t be labelled and 
that all deserved to have the same aspirations and opportunities. Individual actions 
should consider how vulnerable groups of children could be supported better. 

 

8 Partners are now in discussion regarding development of the final plan and how to take 

12



forward partnership arrangements as part of the overall approach to partnership working in 
Herefordshire.  

Community Impact 

9  Priorities will need to focus service delivery around two locality teams which map to the nine 
locality areas identified by Herefordshire Public Services. Partners have already committed to 
working in this way and working more closely with the communities they serve. In this way the 
needs of these communities can be mapped and a more targeted approach to providing 
services can be applied. This information will be used to inform future priorities and therefore 
more effective commissioning intentions in future. The voice of the children, young people and 
their families will be a key component in this commissioning cycle. 

Financial Implications 

10 The final priorities will be used as the basis for commissioning services for children and young 
people in Herefordshire, alongside commissioning arrangements under Herefordshire Public 
Services. In the light of the significant budget reductions facing all sectors, it will be used to 
make the most of existing resources across partners targeted towards children and young 
people. 

Legal Implications 

11 The plan is no longer a statutory requirement but is a partnership commitment to collaborative 
working to make the best use of the resources which exist.  

Risk Management 

12  The final plan will be developed based on comments from the consultation period. Therefore 
at this stage there are no risks relating to this report. 

Consultees 

13 To inform the draft priorities a wide range of people were consulted. Partner staff attended an 
initial event to discuss the issues facing children and young people in Herefordshire. This 
event included members of the Children’s Trust Shadow Board.  

14  The “Have Your Say” campaign was held specifically to capture the important things for 
children and young people. This included three main elements: 

• A “Have Your Say” day where around 100 primary and secondary school pupils 
attended two events with activities to aid thinking around the things that are important 
to them 

•  A poster which allowed either written words or pictures to depict children’s views. This 
was sent to all nurseries, childminders, schools and colleges allowing a much wider 
range of views.to be gathered, including parents / carers 

• Specific sessions in schools and groups of young people facilitated by the youth 
service and HCVYS. This included particular vulnerable groups including looked after 
children, teenage parents and travellers. 

15  The draft plan was then widely circulated as part of a 12 week consultation. This included all 
the partners of the Children’s Trust including schools and colleges, and third sector groups 

13



and organisations.  

Appendices 

16 None  

Background Papers 

• None identified. 

14



 

 
Further information on the subject of this report is available from 

Chris Baird, Assistant Director, Planning, Performance and Development, Children and Young People’s 
Directorate cbaird@herefordshire.gov.uk, 01432 260264 

$ix2gbh0h.doc  

MEETING: CHILDREN’S SERVICES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

DATE: 11 MARCH 2011 

TITLE OF REPORT: REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING REPORT 2010/11 

REPORT BY:  ASSISTANT DIRECTOR: PLANNING, 
PERFORMANCE AND DEVELOPMENT 

Wards Affected 

County-wide  

Purpose 

To report on the monitoring of the Children’s Services revenue budget for 2010/11 at the end of 
quarter three.  To provide comparisons to 2009/10 budget and outturn so that Scrutiny 
Committee can assess and comment upon the budget management of Children’s Services. 

Recommendation  

THAT the Committee comments and scrutinises the figures contained herein. 

Key Points Summary 

2010/11 

• The overall forecast shows a net over spend of £647k and this represents a reduction 
in the projected overspend of £434k since the last report to scrutiny in December 2010.  
As previously reported the overspend is almost entirely due to the pressures on 
external placements for looked after children and young people and placements for 
children with complex needs.  

• Looked After Children (LAC) residential and agency fostering placements are currently 
predicted to overspend the allocated budget by £1245k. This is due increased demand 
for placements for children at risk of harm and a doubling in the number of agency 
placements between April (25 children) and the November peak of 53 children. Both 
December and January have seen reductions in agency placement numbers with the 
January figure down to 42 following the return home of one sibling group with another 
sibling group moving into in house foster care. The downward trend is positive, but 
further placement needs this year cannot be eliminated and this emerging trend only 
has a part year effect on the overall costs for 2010/11. 

• Pressures on the Safeguarding staffing budget due to a reliance on agency social 
workers covering vacant posts (16.5 vacant posts on 1 January 2011), long term 
sickness and addressing service pressures within key teams identified during the 2010 
inspections (18.5 agency staff employed to cover these aspects). Other savings within 
the Safeguarding vulnerable children service have been made and cover this pressure. 

• Five new Complex Needs cases have been accepted in year resulting in a total cost of 

AGENDA ITEM 7

15



£2818k which is an over spend of £770k versus budget and an increase of £972k 
compared to the actual expenditure for 2009/10. £330k of the overspend falls in the 
Local Authority budget. 

• Total savings across the directorate of £1812k have already delivered the target saving 
set at the start of the financial year of £857k as well as the 5% saving included in the 
local authority budget for vacancy management (£493k) and made a significant impact 
on offsetting the budget pressures arising from Complex Needs and LAC. 

• The Joint Management team in November introduced cost savings measures council 
wide to address the current financial issues including a freeze on all discretionary 
spend, and options for staff reducing hours (Reducing the Paybill initiative). The 
Children’s Services directorate is actively reducing discretionary spend with the three 
month period November to January showing a 26% or £116k reduction compared to 
the same period in 2009/10.  Part of the discretionary spend this year will include fitting 
out costs of the multi agency collocation offices, which is funded from national 
government grant and cannot be spent on anything else. 

• The consultation period for the Children’s Services restructure ended in October and 
the final agreed structure has been published. Most internal recruitment has now been 
completed, however in the light of the 2011/12 settlement and significant grant 
reductions a number of vacant posts will not be filled. Essential posts, those with 
specific technical skills which it has not been possible to fill internally, are being 
advertised externally, but posts not filled through internal recruitment will be recruited 
on an interim basis. 

• The directorate management team continues to work to minimise the effects of the 
restructure on current staff through a number of initiatives including options for more 
flexible working (reduced hours – where appropriate to service delivery) and identifying 
potential alternative roles for those affected. A small number of staff have opted for 
voluntary redundancy and will be leaving the organisation before 31st March 2011.  

• The Children’s Commissioning group has three targeted workstreams (Looked After 
Children, Complex Needs and Edge of Care) which are focused on reducing the 
ongoing need for high cost interventions,  improving service delivery and driving down 
the costs. 

2011/12 

• The CSR settlement was worse than anticipated as the government front loaded the 
cuts. Herefordshire Council has seen a cut of 13% in formula grants, with a further 9% 
reduction expected in 2012/13. For Children’s Services there are an additional impacts 
resulting from cuts in the new Early Intervention Grant and reduction in the dedicated 
schools grant (DSG) arising from falling pupil numbers and a reduction in the minimum 
funding guarantee.  These reflect the changes in policy of the government, the 
cessation of a number of national programmes and initiatives which were implemented 
locally, and the expectation for schools to be more autonomous and therefore not 
require some of the activity previously funded by grants.  These changes have 
profound implications for the relationship between the local authority and schools, the 
role of the local authority as a provider of services, and also on the staffing and 
resources available to the local authority. 

• The Directorate Leadership Team (DLT) is currently working through the options in 
relation to the budget cuts in order to maintain essential services and operate within 

16



the reduced financial budgets. In view of the extent of the budget reductions further 
reductions in posts are highly likely. This work includes a consultation with schools and 
private and voluntary sector nursery place providers on options for delivering a 
balanced DSG budget. 

 

Alternative Options 

1 This report is a monitoring report for the committee to scrutinise and comment upon. 

Reasons for Recommendations 

2 To enable Scrutiny Committee to carry out its function in relation to the Children’s Services 
revenue budget for 2010/11. 

Introduction and Background 

3 Appendices A to C provide an overview of the budget sources and areas of expenditure. 
With 2009/10 comparative figures. 

4 For additional information Appendix D shows in a graphical format the changing profile for 
numbers of looked after children and children with complex needs.  

Key Considerations 

5 There have been some budget virements since the last Scrutiny report and the last 
forecast figures have been adjusted where applicable to reflect the reported variance to 
budget, as virements had been taken into account when producing the forecast. 

Local Authority Expenditure 

6 Appendix A shows the budget and forecast expenditure for 2010/11 with 2009/10 
comparisons.  The forecast outturn currently projects an overspend of £647k.  Details of 
the principal variances between outturn and budget are provided in the following sections : 

7 External agency fostering and residential placement costs continue to rise with an 
expected overspend of £1245k. Although additional funds were allocated to reflect the 
pressures the numbers of children have shown a significant increase over the past four 
months with a corresponding increase in costs. At the end of January there were 59 
children in either independent residential or foster care placements compared to 42 at the 
end of March 2010 an increase of 40%. Most of these children have been placed in agency 
fostering placements as these were the most appropriate placements to meet the needs of 
the children and also because our own foster care placements were fully utilised.  The 
Council is developing its own framework agreement with independent suppliers which will 
manage costs in the medium term.   

8 The Council’s fostering and other looked after children costs budget is now expecting a 
small underspend of £13k. Savings from court costs and post 16 accommodation partially 
offset by increased costs for fostering and kinship carers. 

9 Family Assessment and Support shows an under spend of £373k. Following the removal of 
ring fencing from grants it has been possible to offset contract costs for the Action for 
Children contract and the Women’s Aid contract which have delivered £105k of savings. 

17



Further reductions in contract expenditure totalling £110k have been delivered by a review 
and contract re-negotiations. Approximately £66k of savings have been identified within the 
adoption service, whilst the costs for advocacy have also been offset against area based 
grant.  

10 The Children with Disabilities team (non joint agency managed cases) is expecting savings 
of £56k due to staff vacancies of £54k, and a reduction in the Barnardo’s contract of £20k 
partly offset by increased cost for direct payments (£20k). 

11 The forecast currently includes the costs of redundancies following the restructuring of the 
Safeguarding team which was completed in early September (cost £70k). It may be 
possible to capitalise these costs if government permission is given, but this is not yet 
confirmed. Additional 18.5 agency social workers (as at 1 January 2011) have been 
brought in to provide cover for vacancies, address key service areas highlighted in the 
OfSTED inspection in 2010, and also to provide additional experience to support the high 
number of newly qualified social workers. Due to a national shortage of social workers 
hourly rates are increasing and the cost per hour is at least 50% more than employing own 
staff. This has resulted in increased staff costs within the Safeguarding area with a 
predicted overspend of £432k.  

12 A total of five new placements have been made to date this year and result in the budget 
being over spent by a total of £770k of which £330k is charged to the local authority 
budget. Work is continuing to develop options for reducing costs and numbers of children 
requiring this high cost intervention. 

13 Savings have been created in the Early Years budget through savings identified within the 
Surestart grant to offset staff costs for the quality and improvement team totalling £72k. 

14 Savings in the Education Welfare service, School Improvement team and the Youth 
Offending team arising from vacancies and cost control measures total £159k. 

15 Other savings within the management section of Improvement and Inclusion relate to 
offsetting costs against available grants £107k and cost savings of £50k which offset the 
projected overspend of £27k relating to the closure of the jointly funded (with 
Worcestershire) Awards and Grants service at the end of the current financial year 
(National service has been redesigned and transferred to single body). 

16 The Youth Service is currently expecting to spend to budget but is exploring opportunities 
to generate income from outdoor activities as a way of offsetting the need to make cuts in 
this area. 

17 The PPD staff budget now reflects the transfer of the business support staff for 
Safeguarding into the centralised CYPD business support function. Savings in year 
totalling £153k are due to vacancies being held particularly within the performance team in 
order to cover the costs of the posts previously funded by Contact Point grant. 

18 Home to school transport costs are reflecting savings of £515k as a result of the recent 
route reviews with 62 routes being rationalised down to 41 with additional savings 
generated through additional income, largely due to increased numbers of young people 
attending college, and some savings from an overestimate of outstanding invoices at year 
end.  Two fewer school days in the current financial year also contribute to the savings as 
do savings in escort costs. 

19 The Community Operations budget is expected to make savings of £148k this year due to 
utilising the Think Family and Surestart grants.   

18



20 Central Management costs show a predicted over spend of £315k, of which £104k relates 
to the recruitment costs for a new DCS and incremental costs for the interim DCS. There 
are additional costs related to the staff consultation and the restructure totalling £30k for 
additional HR resources. The balance of the overspend relates to the original savings 
target which was held at directorate level and savings have been delivered across all 
service areas.. 

 

Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) 

21 Appendix B provides details of the Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG).  Within the central 
element of the DSG an over spend had been previously forecast relating to the educational 
element of complex needs cases, discussed above. The same overspend as for LA applies 
(3/7th total spend) at £330k. A further budget pressure of £145k relates to increased needs 
for additional support in schools for children with additional educational needs which is 
provided via banded funding. Vacancies within the Additional Needs and Travellers 
Children teams are forecast to release savings of £158k. Other savings have been 
identified within Early Years of £103k, fees to independent schools of £17k and on inter-
authority re-coupment of £141k which have significantly reduced the projected overspend 
to a net £53k overspend. 

22 Wigmore High and Primary schools plus John Kyrle became academies on 1st January 
2011. The estimated top slice on the DSG budget relating to this change in status is £37k 
for quarter 4 but which has not yet been confirmed and is therefore not reflected in the 
DSG table.  

23 As more schools become academies there will be further top slices to the DSG budget in 
year as central services are expected to charge academies for services previously 
provided free through the DSG. 

Grant Funded Expenditure 

24 To provide members with a full overview of the use of grants by the Directorate Appendix 
C sets out the major grant funded activities.  

25 The three principal funding streams for Children’s Services (other than Council and DSG) 
are the Area Based Grant for which there is a budget of £3,633k, Standards Fund (DCSF) 
of £17,785k and Surestart for which the grant is £5,228k for 2010/11. 

26 The Area Based Grant budget has been reduced by 8% for children and young people 
reflecting the in year savings identified by the directorate.   

27 As part of the deficit reduction plans all opportunities to maximise grant expenditure are 
being explored and some significant costs have already been attributed to grants within the 
current forecasts and further charges will be identified and actioned in the coming months. 

Implications for 2011/12 and beyond 

28 The final budget settlement for the directorate is almost confirmed, subject to decisions 
regarding the dedicated schools grant.  The total impact on the CYPD local authority 
budget between 2010/11 and 2011/12 is estimated to be approximately £3,300-3,600k 
arising from: 

• Star Chamber savings of £1,747k including actions to mitigate / reduce pressures on 

19



LAC & complex needs budgets, and the estimated savings from the CYPD restructure. 

• Continued pressures on LAC and complex needs budgets which are estimated to be in 
the region of £1500-1600k before savings from directorate actions. 

• Impact of academies top slice on CYPD, total cut £650k of which £300k will be 
allocated to CYPD. 

29 The new Early Intervention Grant (EIG) at £6,472k for 2011/12 is a reduction of £2,000k 
compared to comparable grants received in 2010/11.  Some savings have been 
implemented in 2010/11 to anticipate this reduction (c.£800k) 

• The principal impact of EIG cuts falls on the School Improvement service as grants 
previously included within the area based grant have been stopped.  These include 
grants for primary and secondary national strategies, behaviour and learning, extended 
schools activities, extended rights to travel (decision pending), and particular posts 
such as the choice advisor role (even though currently the statutory duty to provide 
remains). 

• The decisions by national government to stop certain grants and activity are part of the 
policy shift set out in the Education Bill, which proposes greater freedom and autonomy 
for individual schools.  The relationship with the local authority will therefore 
fundamentally change, with schools expected to be able to deliver improvements in 
education and opportunity without as much reliance on local authority services.  The 
local authority has expanded its range of traded activities to enable schools to 
purchase services that they require to assist them in their work.  However, other 
service areas will cease and CYPD will be reorganising its workforce accordingly for 
2011/12 

30 Decisions in relation to grants for Music Service (was Standards Fund £292k in 2010/11) 
and Extended Rights to Travel grant (Area Based Grant -ABG funding total value £330k in 
2010/11, £100k impact on CYPD) are still outstanding. 

31 The Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) settlement was 0% per pupil and -1.5% minimum 
funding guarantee (MFG) which was worse than hoped for. 

32 The central DSG funded budgets (principally staffing related for additional needs and 
admissions) will be subject to a top slice estimated at £226k plus a 3% cut to close the 
funding gap, in total approximately £300k cut. 

33 Pressures on the overall DSG budget total approximately £1 million as a result of falling 
rolls and pressures predominantly on the Complex Needs budget and banded funding 
(additional support to schools for children with special educational needs). 

34 Schools budgets initial projections in September 2010 indicated that up to 50% of our 
schools were predicting deficit budgets within two years. 

35 In 2011/12 Standards Funds cease to exist as a separate grant stream and the majority 
will be rolled into the per pupil amounts funding for schools in DSG. There are cuts within 
the standards fund grants principally linked to national strategies for school improvement. 

36 It is clear from information received to date that the savings to be delivered are heavily 
weighted into 2011/12 and 2012/13. This will have additional implications for the overall 
council budget and will require close scrutiny of the priorities for children’s services as for 
all council services.  

20



37 Children’s Services are actively pursuing options to identify income generation 
opportunities which will support the ongoing delivery of current service levels, to drive out 
efficiencies through contract reviews and re-negotiations, and cost prevention, for example 
through more early intervention to reduce social care costs. 

 Community Impact 

The work of the Children and Young People’s Directorate, including schools and early years 
settings have wide ranging community impacts, benefiting children and young people and their 
families across Herefordshire. 

Financial Implications 

These are contained in the body of the report.  The projected outturn is based upon results to 
the end of December 2010. 

Legal Implications 

The use of budgets including grants must comply with the legal requirements associated with 
each funding stream and the conditions of specific grants. 

Risk Management 

The risks are set out in the body of the report, in terms of the potential overspend.  The report 
notes the actions planned to address this potential overspend and some of the work in terms 
of the restructure and establishment of a Herefordshire approach to address the use of 
independent placements.  Vacancy management will be closely monitored to ensure that the 
affects on service delivery and staff workloads are carefully assessed and regularly reviewed. 

Consultees 

Not applicable 

Appendices 

Appendix A, B, C and D are attached and referred to in the body of the report. 

 

21



22



Appendix A 
Budget and Projected Local Authority Expenditure for 2010/11 with 2009/10 Comparatives

£'000

Local Authority Net 
Expenditure (excluding 
corporate recharges) Budget Actual

Variance 
to Budget 

*1 Budget*1

Last 
reported 
Projected 
Outturn

Last 
report 
var to 
budget

Current 
Projected 
Outurn

Variance 
to Budget 

*1

Current 
Projected 
Outurn vs 

Last

External Agency Placements 2,827 3,508 (681) 3,335 4,056 (721) 4,579 (1,245) (523)

Fostering & other Looked After 
Children costs (LAC)

1,920 2,144 (224) 2,158 2,141 17 2,145 13 (4)

Children with Disabilities (non 
JAM cases)

681 632 49 652 633 19 595 56 38

Family Assessment and Support 2,062 2,052 10 2,234 2,122 112 1,862 373 260

Safeguarding Staff Costs 
(including social workers)

4,318 4,361 (43) 3,881 4,220 (339) 4,313 (432) (93)

Sub total Safeguarding 11,808 12,697 (889) 12,260 13,172 (912) 13,494 (1,235) (322)

Complex Needs Solutions 
(formerly JAM)

825 791 34 878 1,178 (300) 1,208 (330) (30)

Early Years (non grant funded) 77 65 12 72 30 42 (0) 72 30

Education Welfare Team 188 203 (15) 217 212 5 209 8 3

14-19 Strategy 78 60 18 75 75 (0) 13 62 62

Improvement & Inclusion Mgmt 362 347 15 376 350 26 245 132 105

Special Educational Needs 810 773 37 941 941 (0) 926 15 15

School Improvement Service 919 970 (51) 944 848 96 803 141 45

Traded Services 0 58 (58) (6) (6) 0 43 (49) (49)

Youth Offending Team 341 321 20 320 315 5 310 10 5

Youth Services 1,123 1,061 62 1,085 1,085 (0) 1,085 (0) 0

Sub Total Inclusion & Impr. 4,723 4,649 74 4,902 5,028 (126) 4,842 60 186

Children’s Services ICT (49) 49 (98) 53 53 (0) 26 27 27

Planning, Performance Mgmt 826 701 125 1,321 1,219 102 1,193 128 26

Property / Asset Management 746 730 16 767 737 30 742 25 (5)

School Admissions & Transport 5,232 4,471 761 4,827 4,472 355 4,312 515 160

Sub Total PP&D 6,755 5,951 804 6,967 6,481 486 6,273 695 208

Community Operations 102 121 (19) 301 156 145 153 148 3

Central Management Costs 228 238 (10) 197 325 (128) 301 (104) 24

Staff Severance Costs 916 927 (11) 766 770 (4) 770 (4) 0

Target Saving (160) (95) (65) (577) (70) (507) (346) (231) 276

Misc Other Central costs *2 (269) (248) (21) (107) (72) (35) (132) 25 60

Sub Total Central CYPD 715 822 (107) 278 953 (675) 593 (315) 360

Total Local Authority Net 
Expenditure

24,103 24,240 (137) 24,708 25,790 (1,082) 25,355 (647) 435

*1 Adverse (overspend) variances shown in brackets (), favourable (under spend) as positive 

2009/10 2010/11

*2 Recharges  

23



24



Appendix B
Budget and Projected Dedicated Schools Grant Expenditure for 2010/11 with 2009/10 Comparatives

£'000

Dedicated Schools Grant 
(DSG) Budget Actual

Variance to 
Budget *1 Budget 

Last 
reported 
Projected 
Outturn

Last 
report 
var to 
budget

Current 
Proj. 
Outturn

Variance 
to Budget 

*1

Current 
Projected 
Outurn vs 
Last

Grant Income (84,526) (84,526) 0 (87,346) (87,346) 0 (87,346) 0 (0)

Primary Schools 38,802 38,797 5 39,745 39,745 (0) 39,745 0 0

High Schools 36,162 36,155 7 37,480 37,480 0 37,480 0 (0)

Special Schools 3,777 3,788 (11) 4,006 4,006 0 4,006 0 (0)

Schools Related Expenditure 
(inc Contingency & carry fwd) *2

182 247 (65) 170 170 0 170 0 0

Less LSC Income (2,750) (2,750) 0 (2,621) (2,621) (0) (2,621) 0 0

Sub total Schools Spending 76,173 76,237 (64) 78,780 78,780 (0) 78,780 0 0

Special Needs Banded Funding 534 600 (66) 477 477 0 622 (145) (145)

Complex Needs Solutions 
(formerly JAM)

878 791 87 878 1,178 (300) 1,208 (330) (30)

Fees to Independent Schools 
(for Special Educational Needs)

341 289 52 477 477 0 460 17 17

Nursery Education Funding 2,888 2,880 8 2,944 2,944 0 2,900 44 44

Pupil Referral Units 924 910 14 944 944 (0) 944 0 0

Schools Admissions & Planning 200 204 (4) 166 182 (16) 196 (30) (14)

Special Educational Needs 
Support Teams

1,563 1,464 99 1,620 1,519 101 1,489 131 30

Travellers Children 139 101 38 128 101 27 101 27 (0)

Early Years Support 536 419 117 479 413 66 420 59 (7)

Inter authority recoupment (5) 165 (170) 95 0 95 (46) 141 46

Other Misc Expenditure 497 608 (111) 359 355 4 325 34 30

Total DSG Central 
Expenditure

8,495 8,431 64 8,566 8,590 (24) 8,619 (53) (29)

Total DSG 84,668 84,668 0 87,346 87,370 (24) 87,399 (53) (29)

2009/10 2010/11

*1 Adverse (overspend) variances shown in brackets (), favourable (under spend) as positive  

25



26



Appendix C
Major Grant Funded Activities

£'000

Grant Funded Expenditure
Funding / 
Source Budget Actual Variance Budget 

Last 
reported 
Projected 
Outturn

Last report 
var to 
budget

Current 
Proj. 
Outturn

Variance 
to Budget

Current 
Projected 
Outurn vs 
Last

Common Assessment Framework 
(CAF)

ABG 148 148 0 99 99 0 99 0 0

Other Community Operations Support ABG 114 113 1 287 287 0 287 0 (0)

Extended Schools Start Up ABG 668 666 2 308 257 51 257 51 (0)

Other Schools Support ABG 918 866 52 615 615 0 621 (5) (6)

Connexions ABG 1,470 1,470 0 1,392 1,392 (0) 1,372 20 20

School Travel ABG 111 111 0 130 130 0 130 0 (0)

Teen Pregnancy ABG 96 94 2 42 42 (0) 42 0 0

Children & Adolesecent Mental Health ABG 202 202 0 197 197 (0) 197 0 0

Substance Misuse ABG 70 68 2 25 25 (0) 44 (20) (19)

Other Safeguarding Children ABG 511 502 9 264 264 0 264 0 (0)

LSC ABG 0 0 0 219 219 0 208 11 11

Other ABG ABG 211 279 (68) 55 55 (0) 55 (0) (0)

Total Area Based Grant 4,519 4,519 0 3,633 3,582 51 3,576 57 6

Children's Centres DfE 2,490 2,490 0 2,796 2,796 0 2,792 4 4

Other Early Years DfE 1,583 1,583 0 2,432 2,386 46 2,322 110 64

Total Surestart Grant 4,073 4,073 0 5,228 5,182 46 5,114 113 68

Special & Beacon Schools DfE 1,929 1,929 0 1,924 1,924 0 1,924 0 (0)

School Development Grant DfE 5,183 5,183 0 5,393 5,393 0 5,393 0 (0)

Other Devolved Schools Stds Fund DfE 2,066 2,066 0 2,902 2,902 0 2,902 0 (0)

Extended Schools DfE 513 513 0 723 647 76 647 76 (0)

Support to Music Services DfE 220 220 0 220 220 (0) 220 0 0

One to one tuition DfE 383 383 0 729 729 0 729 0 (0)

Other non-devolved Stds Funds DfE 1,300 1,300 0 1,795 1,795 (0) 1,795 0 0

School Standards Grant DfE 4,193 4,193 0 4,264 4,264 (0) 4,264 0 0

Total Standards Fund 15,787 15,787 0 17,950 17,874 76 17,875 76 (1)

Community Ops (Think Family) 
various

DfE 349 349 0 360 352 8 360 0 (8)

Training & Development *1 Various 482 482 0 526 526 (0) 526 0 0

YPLA*2 YPLA 0 0 0 8,222 8,222 0 8,222 0 (0)

2009/10 2010/11

*1 included Contact Point 09/10 - grant being withdrawn during 2010/11

*2 YPLA income now passes to colleges via LA following closure of LSC 31/3/10
 

27



28



Appendix D 

Complex Needs 

0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

3000

3500

4000

2008/09
actual

2009/10
actual

2010/11
estimate

2011/12
estimate

2012/13
estimate

2013/14
estimate

2014/15
estimate

Cost £k

-

5.0

10.0

15.0

20.0

25.0

No. Young people

Total Complex Needs LA Cost Complex Needs Average number YP Closing No YP

Numbers in Children's Agency Residential and Fostering Placements

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

M
ar
-0
7

Ju
n-
07

Se
p-
07

De
c-
07

M
ar
-0
8

Ju
n-
08

Se
p-
08

De
c-
08

M
ar
-0
9

Ju
n-
09

Se
p-
09

De
c-
09

M
ar
-1
0

Ju
n-
10

Se
p-
10

De
c-
10

M
ar
-1
1

Quarter

P
la
ce
m
en
t 
N
u
m
b
er
s

Residential & Secure

Fostering

Total

 
Placement Numbers  
 

NUMBERS
Residential 
(inc secure)

Agency 
fostering Total

Mar-10 16 26 42
Jun-10 17 25 42
Sep-10 16 38 54
Dec-10 18 50 68
Jan-10 17 42 59  

29



30



 

 
Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Hilary Hall, Head of Quality and Improvement on (01432) 260801 

  

$rkxuuqot.doc 26Nov08 

MEETING: CHILDREN’S SERVICES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

DATE: 11 MARCH 2011 

TITLE OF REPORT: PERFORMANCE DIGEST – QUARTER 3 2010-2011 

REPORT BY  HEAD OF QUALITY AND IMPROVEMENT 

CLASSIFICATION: Open  

Wards Affected 

County-wide 

Purpose 

To present the Performance Digest for Children’s Services for Quarter 3 of 2010-2011, to update on 
the recommendations from the Ofsted inspection of safeguarding and looked after children services 
and to highlight key performance issues. 

Recommendation 

 THAT Scrutiny Committee assesses and considers the levels of performance achieved 
in Quarter 3 of 2010-2011 and considers if further reports and/or action are 
judged to be necessary, and considers progress against the inspection action 
plan 

Key Points Summary 

• The percentage of initial assessments completed within 7 working days remains low compared 
to target at the end of Quarter 3.  The Referral and Assessment Team has focused on 
improvements to the quality of assessments and ensuring that children are seen in a timely way.  
There is a Referral and Assessment improvement group which is driving forward improvements 
and the service is being re-launched with partners in May 2011.  Since the beginning of January 
2011, the focus has now moved to improving the timeliness of initial assessments and the latest 
available data shows an improvement in this. 

• The number of referrals to children’s social care has continued to rise – 388 referrals per 10,000 
population, compared with 318 per 10,000 population in Quarter 2.  Reasons for this are multi-
faceted including increased awareness in partner agencies arising from the serious case 
reviews published earlier in the year and underuse of the Common Assessment Framework and 
Multi Agency Groups to ensure early intervention for lower level concerns.  This is being 
addressed through the Referral and Assessment Improvement Group which is working with 
partner agencies to improve the quality of referrals received and appropriately stepping down 
referrals to the Common Assessment Framework. 

• As at 31 December 2010, there were 177 children with a child protection plan, a reduction of 23 
from the position at the end of September 2010 due to a number of plans being appropriately 

AGENDA ITEM 8

31



discontinued during the period.  Outcomes for children in care continue to show good 
performance, particularly in relation to placement stability and timeliness of reviews.  This is 
against a backdrop of a significant increase in the number of children coming into care since 1 
April 2010 from 155 at 31 March 2010 to 211 as at 31 December 2010. 

• Validated examination results show that, compared to our national and statistical neighbours, 
overall Herefordshire continues to improve although not achieving the aspirational targets set by 
the Department for Education.  Areas that require specific improvement in relation to 
achievement in the early years and primary phases are improving Herefordshire’s attainment in 
the Early Years Foundation Stage Profile, in which there were disappointing results in 2010, 
improving all subjects at key stage 1 with a particular emphasis on improving the performance 
of boys especially in reading and writing, improving the quality of leadership in schools to 
ensure that all pupils make the required progress and achieve well and improving all subjects at 
key stage 2 with a particular emphasis on improving the progress of all pupils in maths and the 
performance of the more able in the subject. 

• The percentage of pupils achieving Level 4+ at Key Stage 2 in both English and Maths 
increased slightly to 71.4% from 70.8% in 2009.  Two levels progression in English between 
Key Stages 1 and 2 decreased, but improved for Maths.  At secondary phase, the percentage of 
pupils achieving 5 or more GCSEs at A*-C including English and Maths increased to 56% from 
52.2% in 2009.  This is ahead of the West Midlands average (54.2%) and the national average 
(55.2%).  In relation to statistical neighbours, only Gloucestershire, Shropshire and Dorset have 
a higher achievement in this area.  In addition, the achievement of 2 or more GCSEs A*-C in 
Science continues to improve, 71.4% in 2010 compared with 68% in 2009.  Herefordshire is the 
best in terms of its statistical neighbours in this area and ahead of both the West Midlands 
(62.6%) and national (61.6%) averages. 

Alternative Options 

1 There are no Alternative Options. 

Reasons for Recommendations 

2 To ensure that progress against the indicators, for which the Children and Young People’s 
Directorate is responsible, is understood and to ensure that the reasons for actual or potential 
under-performance are understood, clear recommendations are in place to improve 
performance and robust monitoring identifies progress.   

Introduction and Background 

3 The Performance Digest is produced quarterly and is the mechanism for monitoring key 
performance indicators, covering service delivery captured in the Local Area Agreement, the 
Children and Young People’s Directorate Plan and the Children and Young People’s Plan.  
Performance was a key underpinning element of the Ofsted inspections during 2010. 

Key Considerations 

4 The Performance Digest (Appendix 1)  has been circulated as a separate document with the 
agenda and copies are available from the report author.  Key areas in each of the Every Child 
Matters outcome areas, to which the Committee’s attention should be drawn, are set out 
below: 

Be Healthy 

A significant number of the indicators in this outcome area are subject to annual reporting in 
March 2011. In addition, many of the indicators rely on data from the bi-annual Every Child 

32



Matters survey. Due to funding constraints, there are no plans to repeat this survey this year.  
Furthermore, data for some national indicators was collected via the annual TellUs Survey. 
This survey has, however, been discontinued by the government and it is unclear how, and in 
what form, these indicators will continue. 

45.9% of babies are recorded as being breastfed at 6-8 weeks which is below the target of 
60%.  The rate is significantly below target which in part is due to historic staffing issues in 
midwifery and health visiting and a lack of resource for implementing peer support provision.  
All health visiting staff have received UNICEF breastfeeding training and discussions are 
underway with the local midwifery service and Children’s Centres to identify ways of increasing 
the number of babies being breastfed.  An overall plan to increase breastfeeding in 
Herefordshire has been delayed due to the structural developments which are moving the 
provision of health services into the Integrated Care Organisation.  However, development of a 
plan for antenatal group provision delivered in partnership between Children’s Centres and the 
county’s midwifery and health visiting services will begin shortly.  The work will be led by the 
Interim Professional Lead for Health Visiting and School Nurses and will draw on the good 
practice and experience of antenatal groups which are established in North Rural 
Herefordshire and in Ledbury and on national research which clearly shows a link between 
good antenatal group provision and increased rates of breastfeeding. 

A total of 416 assessments under the common assessment framework (CAF) have been 
undertaken in the year to date.  This means that the target of 500 CAFs in the financial year is 
very likely to be achieved.  In order to measure the direct impact of the CAF process, the CAF 
documentation allows the involved parent and/or child/young person to outline how much 
things have actually changed at the end of each meeting.  Through this it has been 
established that over 90% of families feel included in the process and over 85% of families 
report that their, and their children’s situations have improved due to the CAF.  

Stay Safe 

The number of referrals to children’s social care rose again during Quarter 2.  For the rolling 
year to 31 December 2010, there were 388 referrals per 10,000 population, compared with 
318 per 10,000 population to 30 September 2010.  Reasons for this are multi-faceted including 
increased awareness in partner agencies arising from the serious case reviews published 
earlier in the year and underuse of the Common Assessment Framework and Multi Agency 
Groups to ensure early intervention for lower level concerns.  Work is underway with partner 
agencies, through the multi-agency referral desk, to improve the quality of referrals and more 
appropriately direct referrers to the use of the CAF.  However, the percentage of repeat 
referrals remains low at 8% which is well below statistical neighbours and England averages.  
Cases now receive a higher quality step down through the CAF process and children then 
have a multiagency team around them.  This does reduce the need for one agency to become 
worried and re-refer as the team around the child shares tasks and continues working with the 
family.  The Levels of Need pathway is helping to ensure that. 

55% of initial assessments were recorded as completed in 7 working days (NI 59) in the year 
to date.  Performance in terms of timeliness remains low – improving timeliness is a key focus 
for the Referral and Assessment Team.  Between June and September 2010, intensive 
resource and focus was applied to the referral and assessment service resulting in robust 
oversight of all cases, changes to systems and management and the start of improving 
practice, including proactive understanding of the impact of ethnicity, culture and diversity in 
assessments.  From October 2010, a referral and assessment improvement plan has been in 
place to overhaul systems and practice, including partner contributions, with the aim of a 
redesigned and re-launched fit for purpose referral service from May 2011.  Improvements to 
Frameworki, the electronic case management system, continue to be made in line with the 
improvement plan agreed following the inspection.  The percentage of core assessments 

33



completed in 35 working days has also fallen to 48% and a clear management action is in 
place to address this although the focus in the short term is on improving the timeliness of 
initial assessments. 

All child protection and looked after children (LAC) Reviews were completed in the rolling year 
to 30 December 2010 although some (12 out of 205) took place slightly outside of the 
timescale.  This was because of the adverse weather conditions during December 2010 when 
some reviews had to be postponed and rearranged.  As at 31 December 2010, there were 177 
children with a child protection plan, a reduction from the position at the end of September 
2010 due to a number of plans being appropriately discontinued during the period.  The 
number of children coming into the Council’s care has stabilised following the sharp increase 
reported at the end of Quarter 2 – 211 at 31 December 2010.  Despite the rise in the number 
of children coming into the Council’s care, performance in relation to the stability of 
placements for LAC (NI 62 & 63) in terms of the number of moves and length of placement 
continues to be very strong and is recognised both regionally and nationally. 

Enjoy and Achieve 

The percentage of statements of special educational needs (SEN) completed by the authority 
in accordance with the statutory process within 26 weeks remains at 100% which is excellent 
performance and well ahead of statistical neighbours. 

In relation to early years, over 95% of the children have access to pre-school provision and 
83% of provision is either good or outstanding.  The fall in standards at Early Years 
Foundation Stage from 46.2% to 44.6% in 2010 is being addressed through intensive training 
programmes and the introduction of a new software programme, eprofile, to improve the 
accuracy of data submission.  In 2010 Herefordshire was one of the worst performing Local 
Authorities in the country in the Early Years Foundation Stage.  This has implications on the 
subsequent performance at Key Stages 1 and 2 as it is vital that children get a good start in 
their reception year.  Quality assurance of the early years’ data highlighted misunderstandings 
in some schools and settings about what constitutes a ‘good level of development’ in early 
years.  Analysis of the early years data for a number of schools has revealed a pattern of low 
data that is currently being investigated.  

12.3% of Herefordshire’s primary schools are rated outstanding by Ofsted, 56.8% rated good,  
28.4% rated satisfactory and 2.5% inadequate.  Results in relation to Key Stage 2, Level 4 at 
English and Maths, improved in 2010, compared with 2009, from 70.8% to 71.4% but did not 
achieve target.  The percentage of pupils making the expected 2 levels’ progress between Key 
Stages 1 and 2 was better in Maths than English, compared with 2009.  86% of pupils made 
the expected progress in English in 2010 (compared with 87.4% in 2009) and 80% of pupils 
made the expected progress in Maths in 2010 (compared with 78.9% in 2009). 

Many schools improved on their record GCSE results of a year ago, particularly in the 
relatively new benchmark measure of five or more GCSEs at grade A* to C including English 
and mathematics.  The overall figure for Herefordshire was 55.1% compared with 52.2% in 
2009.  All high schools in Herefordshire performed either at or above the previous national 
average for students achieving five or more GCSE grades at A*-C, and some schools made 
significant increases on last year’s record high results.  

There are a number of structures and initiatives in place which have helped support the 
continuing improvement in Herefordshire High Schools.  Each school has a nationally 
accredited School Improvement Partner (SIP) who is employed through the local authority to 
monitor, support and challenge the school they work with.  A minimum of five days are 
routinely allocated for this work throughout the year to cover visits and preparation and report 
writing.  Where a school is identified for additional support the number of SIP days is 

34



increased.  The School Improvement Service moderates the quality of reports and picks up 
issues arising for action.  Herefordshire secondary SIPs are either current or recently retired 
head teachers or a local authority school improvement officer.  In addition all schools have an 
attached school improvement service advisor who provides day to day support, challenge, 
monitoring and advice.  In 2009, the School Improvement Service nominated five high schools 
to be involved in the national Gaining Ground two year project which has brought substantial 
additional funding into each of those five schools to further school improvement.  This project 
has also funded ten days’ support from an outstanding partner school, three within and two 
outside of the county.  Extra SIP days have also been allocated as part of this initiative.  From 
2009, the School Improvement Service has been jointly funding a two year project with 12 high 
schools provided through the Specialist Schools and Academies Trust to promote networking 
and sharing of good practice between schools nationally. 

The English Baccalaureate is a new performance measure championed by the Government, 
to enable international comparisons and will become a focus of attention in the current 
academic year.  Estimates based on 2010 performance indicate that 20% of Herefordshire 
pupils would have achieved the English Baccalaureate.  This compares to 15.5% nationally.  

At Key Stage 2, there were exceptionally good results by children in the Council’s care.  Three 
pupils out of the cohort of 5 achieved level 4 in English and in Maths.  Results were below 
target at Key Stage 4 with three pupils out of the cohort of 16 achieving 5A*-C GCSE including 
English and Maths.   

Absence in secondary schools in the last academic year improved slightly over 2009 to 7%.  
This figure was inflated by the unexpectedly high number of school days lost where travelling 
was difficult due to snow and the ash cloud which delayed children returning to school from 
holidays abroad.  Conversely, absence in primary schools rose for the third successive year 
and is above national averages for the first time in 3 years.  As a result, this is an area for 
focus in the current academic year. 

Make a Positive Contribution 

For the rolling year to 31 December 2010, 91.5% of LAC participated in all of their reviews.  In 
order to ‘count’ for the purposes of this indicator, each young person must participate in each 
of their reviews.  This represents a downward trend in terms of participation and encouraging 
participation of children and young people in their reviews remains a high priority.  Specific 
training is being run for young people to enable them to chair their own reviews.   

In terms of re-offending by young offenders, Quarter 3 data is not yet available.  However, 
looking at the Quarter 2 information, 10 in the cohort of 69 re-offended, committing 22 
offences, which is well below the target for the year.  For the year to date, there were 81 first 
time entrants to the Youth Justice System aged 10-17.  Assuming a consistent profile for the 
rest of the year, the projected outturn will be well below the outturn for 2009/2010 of 152.  The 
percentage of young people receiving a conviction in court who are sentenced to custody 
remains very low at just under 2%. 

16% of young people aged 13-19 gained an accredited outcome in youth work compared with 
the target of 25%.  This is due to an increased focus on delivering more intensive targeted 
work with vulnerable young people. 

Achieve Economic Wellbeing 

76.5% of young offenders are in suitable education, employment or training (EET) which is 
above the outturn for 2009/2010.  Herefordshire did not set a local target for this indicator.  
However, in terms of comparisons, this outturn compares favourably with the whole Youth 

35



Offending Service area (72.1%), the West Midlands region (73.2%) and the country as a 
whole (73.8%).  In terms of accommodation for offenders, 91.4% are deemed to be in suitable 
accommodation. 

Data for the achievement of Level 2 and Level 3 qualifications is due for publication in 
March/April 2011.  Prior attainment data would suggest that there will continue to be 
improvement in the achievement of these qualifications when the data is officially published. 

Provisional data for the percentage of 16-18 year olds who are not in education, employment 
or training (NEET) is 7% which is above the 2009/2010 outturn of 5.9%.  The current 
economic situation and its impact on businesses and overall confidence has affected this 
outturn.  This is reflected across the country.  The work of the Connexions Personal Advisors 
and commissioned services, such as 2XL, who operate an outreach detached project to 
support those who are NEET, is helping to keep the figure as low as possible. 

In terms of increasing the percentage of year 11s moving into learning destinations, including 
vulnerable young people (such as those with learning disability and difficulties and teenage 
mothers), tracking is continuing.  91% of current year 11 young people are recorded as being 
in a learning destination.  71% of 16-19 year olds with learning disabilities and difficulties 
(LDD) are in EET which is below the target for the year and last year’s outturn.  This group is 
disproportionately represented in the NEET cohort and specific positive action is being taken 
to increase opportunities for them.  This includes specific support for special schools.  
Conversely, the percentage of 16-19 year old teenage mothers in EET has increased from 
21% in 2009/2010 to 27%.  The Young Mums To Be programme, with its accredited 
outcomes, is having a positive impact on this cohort.  

Service Management 

61% of social workers who need to obtain the childcare Post Qualifying award (PQ) have 
achieved their PQ1 award.  The number of assessed social work practice learning days per 
full time social worker has increased to 25, as forecast in Quarter 2 and is now above the 
target for the year.  In terms of early years leaders, 59% have a qualification at Level 4 or 
above.  The results of the Early Years Foundation Degree is due shortly, once validated by the 
University of Worcester, and it is anticipated that the target for the year will be achieved (65%) 
as a result. 

The number of working days lost to sickness absence per full time equivalent member of staff 
in the Children and Young People’s Directorate was 9.44 which is above the target of 8 but 
below the 2009/2010 outturn of 10.6. 

Recruitment to the vacant posts in the social worker establishment is underway and it is 
anticipated that the target will be achieved by the end of the financial year. 

Inspection 

5 In June 2010, Ofsted undertook the first annual unannounced inspection of contact, referral 
and assessment arrangements for children’s safeguarding in Herefordshire. As previously 
advised to Committee, this inspection highlighted significant weaknesses in the referral and 
assessment service resulting in one area for priority action.  Prompt and effective remedial 
action was taken to ensure safety of all children referred for a service and work to substantially 
and sustainably improve this particular service is ongoing.  The subsequent full announced 
inspection of safeguarding and looked after children’s services across the partnership took 
place during September 2010.  The overall judgments were, for safeguarding – overall 
effectiveness and capacity to improve both adequate; for looked after children – overall 
effectiveness and capacity to improve both good.   

36



6 In November 2010, Ofsted published its annual rating of children’s services in Herefordshire 
as adequate overall. 

7 In relation to safeguarding, improvements were particularly noted in the areas of elective home 
education, children missing from home and school, raised awareness of domestic abuse and 
private fostering.  Good elements of safeguarding were identified as a well conceived CAF 
model; effective safe recruitment; safeguarding training; Family Intervention Project, Multi-
Agency Public Protection Arrangements and Local Authority Designated Officer (LADO) 
officer.  Overwhelmingly children and young people told inspectors that they felt safe at school 
and in their communities and cited excellent examples of approaches to reduce bullying.  
Areas for improvement were identified as being performance management and quality 
assurance, commissioning, escalation of concerns in and between agencies, effective sexual 
abuse examination arrangements for children and ensuring value for money. 

8 The overall effectiveness of services and outcomes for looked after children, young people 
and care leavers were judged as good with some outstanding features.  Children and young 
people reported consistently that the care they receive is good or very good. Placement 
stability is very high in Herefordshire, above national average.  The impact of agencies to 
ensure looked after children are successful in enjoying and achieving is outstanding, with 
children and young people achieving and attaining very well in Herefordshire.  Looked after 
children are actively involved in service design including recruitment of staff and chairing their 
own reviews.  The impact of agencies in enabling looked after children and young people to 
achieve economic well being is good with an effective aftercare service and plans to offer 
apprenticeships through the partnership for all care leavers who want it. 

9 Following the announced inspection in September 2010, the partnership produced an 
improvement plan with actions to meet the key recommendations made by Ofsted.  This action 
plan, together with progress, is attached for the Committee’s consideration at Appendix 2.  In 
addition, Ofsted’s report highlighted other improvement actions which have been incorporated 
into a further more detailed action plan.  All actions set out in this additional action plan are 
rated either Green or Amber.   

Community Impact 

10 None. 

Financial Implications 

11 Remedial action in respect of the directorate’s performance may require reallocation of 
resources within existing budgets.  This is being addressed by the Directorate Leadership 
Team. 

Legal Implications 

12 None. 

Risk Management 

13 The risks to achievement of the indicators, for which the directorate is responsible, are 
identified by officers as part of the service planning process.  Any significant risks are 
escalated to the directorate risk register, and corporate risk register, as appropriate.  Day to 
day management of risk is undertaken by responsible officers, in conjunction with their 
Assistant Directors. 

37



Consultees 

14 None. 

Appendices 

15 Appendix 1:  Performance Digest (circulated with the agenda as a separate document - copies 
are available from the report author). 

16 Appendix 2:  Inspection action plan 

Background Papers 

• Ofsted – Inspection of safeguarding and looked after children services, Herefordshire, 22 
October 2010. 

38



 

   
   

 C
o
m
p
o
si
te
 O
u
tc
o
m
es
 a
n
d
 A
ct
io
n
 P
la
n
 f
o
r 
im
p
ro
vi
n
g
 

se
rv
ic
es
 t
o
 c
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
eo
p
le
 

  
P
ro
g
re
ss
 u
p
d
at
e 
– 
F
eb
ru
ar
y 
20
11
 

    
K
im
 D
ra
ke
, A
ss
is
ta
n
t 
D
ir
ec
to
r;
 S
af
eg
u
ar
d
in
g
 a
n
d
 V
u
ln
er
ab
le
 

C
h
ild
re
n
 S
er
vi
ce
 

 
 

39



K
im
 D
ra
ke
, A

ss
is
ta
nt
 D
ire
ct
or
; S

af
eg

ua
rd
in
g 
an
d 
V
ul
ne

ra
bl
e 
C
hi
ld
re
n 
S
er
vi
ce
 

T
el
: (
01
43

2)
 2
61

60
3 
E
m
ai
l: 
kd
ra
ke
@
he
re
fo
rd
sh
ire
.g
ov
.u
k 

1 

 

 
A
M
B
E
R
 

 
G
R
E
E
N
 

  R
ef
 

A
re
a 
fo
r 
im
p
ro
ve
m
en
t 
 

O
u
tc
o
m
es
 t
o
 

ac
h
ie
ve
 

L
ea
d
 o
ff
ic
er
 

R
ep
o
rt
in
g
 t
o
 

(a
cc
o
u
n
ta
b
le
 

b
o
d
y)
 

K
ey
 a
ct
io
n
s 

T
im
es
ca
le
s 

P
ro
g
re
ss
 

1.
1 

Im
pr
ov
e 
qu
al
ity
 a
nd
 

tim
el
in
es
s 
of
 a
ss
es
sm

en
ts
 

en
su
rin

g 
th
ey
 e
xp
lic
itl
y 

id
en

tif
y 
ris
k 
an
d 
pr
ot
ec
tiv
e 

fa
ct
or
s 
an
d 
id
en
tif
y 

in
di
vi
du

al
 n
ee

ds
 o
f 

ch
ild
re
n 
an

d 
yo
un
g 

pe
op

le
 (
pa
ra
 4
2)
 

 

A
ll 
ch
ild
re
n 
an

d 
yo
un

g 
pe
op

le
 

re
fe
rr
ed
 to
 

ch
ild
re
n’
s 
so
ci
al
 

ca
re
 r
ec
ei
ve
 a
 

tim
el
y 
as
se
ss
m
en
t 

of
 h
ig
h 
qu
al
ity
 

w
hi
ch
 e
xp
lic
itl
y 

id
en

tif
ie
s 
ris
k 
an
d 

pr
ot
ec
tiv
e 
fa
ct
or
s 

fo
r 
ea
ch
 c
hi
ld
 

Li
sa
 G
re
en

, 
H
ea
d 
of
 

F
ie
ld
w
or
k 

R
&
A
 S
er
vi
ce
 

Im
pr
ov
em

en
t 

G
ro
up

 
S
&
V
C
 S
en

io
r 

M
an
ag

em
en
t 

T
ea
m
 

H
S
C
B
 

R
ec
on
fig
ur
e 
R
&
A
 te

am
 –
 in
te
rim

 
m
od
el
 

In
cr
ea
se
 p
ar
tn
er
 a
ge
nc
y 

co
nt
rib
ut
io
ns
 to
 a
ss
es
sm

en
t 

    D
ev
el
op

 k
ey
 s
ta
ff 
to
 u
nd
er
st
an
d 

re
qu
ire
m
en
ts
 th
ro
ug

h 
se
rie

s 
of
 

de
ve
lo
pm

en
t w

or
ks
ho
ps
 

Q
ua
lit
y 
as
su
re
 a
ss
es
sm

en
ts
 

w
ee
kl
y 
(3
 a
ud

its
 u
nd

er
ta
ke
n 

ea
ch
 b
y 
H
ea
d 
of
 S
er
vi
ce
 a
nd
 

A
ss
is
ta
nt
 D
ire
ct
or
) 
an

d 
re
co
rd
 

ac
tio
ns
 fo

r 
im
pr
ov
em

en
t 

 

25
 O
ct
ob

er
 

20
10

 
31
 M

ar
ch
 

20
11

 
    31
 J
an

ua
ry
 

20
11

 
 F
ro
m
 1
 

O
ct
ob
er
 2
01

0 

C
om

pl
et
ed

 
 U
nd
er
w
ay
 –
 to

 b
e 

ev
id
en

ce
d 
th
ro
ug

h 
m
ul
ti 
ag
en

cy
 p
ee
r 

au
di
t –
 1
8 
F
eb

ru
ar
y 

20
11

 
 C
om

pl
et
ed

 
  U
nd
er
w
ay
 

1.
2 

E
ns
ur
e 
th
at
 s
ta
ff 
re
ce
iv
e 

re
gu
la
r 
re
fle
ct
iv
e 
an
d 

ou
tc
om

e-
fo
cu
se
d 

su
pe
rv
is
io
n 
in
 li
ne

 w
ith
 

po
lic
y 
re
qu

ire
m
en
ts
, t
ha
t 

su
pe
rv
is
io
n 
on

 c
as
es
 is
 

re
co
rd
ed
 o
n 
ap

pr
op
ria

te
 

su
pe
rv
is
io
n 
te
m
pl
at
e 
an

d 
th
at
 th

is
 is
 a
cc
es
si
bl
e 
on
 

th
e 
el
ec
tr
on

ic
 r
ec
or
di
ng
 

sy
st
em

. (
pa
ra
 7
8)
 

   

A
ll 
st
af
f r
ec
ei
ve
 

re
gu
la
r,
 r
ef
le
ct
iv
e 

an
d 
ou
tc
om

e-
fo
cu
se
d 
su
pe
rv
is
io
n  

Li
sa
 G
re
en

, 
H
ea
d 
of
 

F
ie
ld
w
or
k 

R
&
A
 S
er
vi
ce
 

Im
pr
ov
em

en
t 

G
ro
up

 
S
&
V
C
 S
en

io
r 

M
an
ag

em
en
t 

T
ea
m
 

E
m
be
d 
us
e 
of
 s
up
er
vi
si
on
 

te
m
pl
at
e 
on

 a
ll 
sa
fe
gu

ar
di
ng

 
ca
se
s.
 

 E
ns
ur
e 
re
gu

la
r 
au

di
ts
 o
f c
as
es
 

ag
ai
ns
t s
up

er
vi
si
on

 s
ta
nd

ar
ds
 

R
ep
or
t r
eg

ul
ar
ly
 to

 A
ss
is
ta
nt
 

D
ire
ct
or
 fo

r 
Q
ua
lit
y 
A
ss
ur
an

ce
 

G
ro
up

 

E
nd
 o
f 

N
ov
em

be
r 

20
10

 
 F
ro
m
 J
an
ua
ry
 

20
11

 
F
ro
m
 

F
eb
ru
ar
y 

20
11

 

B
ei
ng
 u
se
d 
by
 a
ll 

te
am

s 
– 
ev
id
en
ce
d 

th
ro
ug

h 
au

di
t 

 U
nd
er
w
ay
 –
 r
ep

or
t t
o 

S
M
T
 in
 M

ar
ch
 2
01

1 
F
or
m
s 
pa
rt
 o
f S

&
V
C
 

re
po
rt
 to

 Q
A
G
 

th
ro
ug

h 
H
ea

d 
of
 

S
af
eg
ua
rd
in
g 
an

d 
R
ev
ie
w
 

40



K
im
 D
ra
ke
, A

ss
is
ta
nt
 D
ire
ct
or
; S

af
eg

ua
rd
in
g 
an
d 
V
ul
ne

ra
bl
e 
C
hi
ld
re
n 
S
er
vi
ce
 

T
el
: (
01
43

2)
 2
61

60
3 
E
m
ai
l: 
kd
ra
ke
@
he
re
fo
rd
sh
ire
.g
ov
.u
k 

2 

R
ef
 

A
re
a 
fo
r 
im
p
ro
ve
m
en
t 
 

O
u
tc
o
m
es
 t
o
 

ac
h
ie
ve
 

L
ea
d
 o
ff
ic
er
 

R
ep
o
rt
in
g
 t
o
 

(a
cc
o
u
n
ta
b
le
 

b
o
d
y)
 

K
ey
 a
ct
io
n
s 

T
im
es
ca
le
s 

P
ro
g
re
ss
 

1.
8 

P
ar
tn
er
s 
pe
rc
ep
tio
ns
 o
f 

R
A
T
 n
ee
d 
im
pr
ov
in
g 

(p
ar
a 
44
) 

E
ns
ur
e 
th
at
 

pa
rt
ne
rs
 h
av
e 

co
nf
id
en
ce
 in
 th

e 
re
fe
rr
al
 a
nd
 

as
se
ss
m
en
t t
ea
m
 

an
d 
th
at
 th

is
 le
ad

s 
to
 a
pp

ro
pr
ia
te
 

re
fe
rr
al
s.
 

K
im
 D
ra
ke
, 

A
ss
is
ta
nt
 

D
ire
ct
or
, S

&
V
C
 

R
&
A
 S
er
vi
ce
 

Im
pr
ov
em

en
t 

G
ro
up

 

P
ro
du
ce
 c
le
ar
 r
ef
er
ra
l 

st
an
da
rd
s 
fo
r 
al
l p
ar
tn
er
s 

in
cl
ud

in
g 
R
&
A
 te
am

 
G
ai
n 
co
m
m
itm

en
t f
ro
m
 p
ar
tn
er
 

ag
en
ci
es
 to
 b
e 
pa
rt
 o
f j
oi
nt
 

so
lu
tio
n 
vi
a 
R
&
A
 S
er
vi
ce
 

im
pr
ov
em

en
t g
ro
up

 
M
on

ito
r 
an

d 
re
vi
ew

 q
ua

lit
y 
of
 

te
am

 a
pp
ro
ac
h 

31
 D
ec
em

be
r 

20
10

 
 Ja
nu
ar
y 
20

11
 

(p
ar
tn
er
 

ev
en

t)
 

 F
ro
m
 

Ja
nu
ar
y 
20

11
 

C
om

pl
et
ed

 
  C
om

m
itm

en
t t
hr
ou
gh
 

H
S
C
B
 –
 p
ar
tn
er
 

ev
en

t s
ch
ed

ul
ed
 fo

r 
M
ay
 2
01

1 
K
ey
 p
ar
tn
er
s 
– 

po
lic
e,
 h
ea

lth
 a
nd
 

C
A
F
 –
 p
ar
t n

ew
 m

ul
ti 

ag
en
cy
 d
es
k.
  T

o 
be
 

re
vi
ew

ed
 –
 J
un

e 
20
11

 

6.
2 

A
ge

nc
ie
s 
do

 n
ot
 a
lw
ay
s 

es
ca
la
te
 c
on
ce
rn
s 
w
he

n 
th
ey
 r
el
at
e 
to
 a
 p
ar
tn
er
 

ag
en
cy
 (
pa
ra
 3
4)
 

E
ns
ur
e 
th
at
 

ag
en
ci
es
 

ef
fe
ct
iv
el
y 
es
ca
la
te
 

co
nc
er
ns
 w
ith
 

pa
rt
ne
r 
ag
en

ci
es
 

an
d 
th
at
 

ap
pr
op

ria
te
 

re
m
ed
ia
l a
ct
io
n 
is
 

ta
ke
n 

K
im
 D
ra
ke
, 

A
ss
is
ta
nt
 

D
ire
ct
or
 S
&
V
C
 

P
ol
ic
y 
an

d 
P
ra
ct
ic
e 
su
b 

gr
ou
p,
 H
S
C
B
 

R
ev
ie
w
 a
nd

 r
el
au
nc
h 
H
S
C
B
 

es
ca
la
tio
n 
po

lic
y 

D
ec
em

be
r 

20
10

 
O
ve
ra
ll 
po

lic
y 
be

in
g 

re
vi
ew

ed
 a
nd

 
en
ha

nc
ed
 –
 to
 b
e 

la
un

ch
ed
 M

ar
ch
 

20
11

 
S
pe
ci
fic
 p
ro
to
co
l 

be
tw
ee

n 
P
C
T
 a
nd
 

C
hi
ld
re
n’
s 
S
oc
ia
l 

C
ar
e 
la
un
ch
ed
 in
 

F
eb
ru
ar
y 
20

11
 

6.
3 

P
er
fo
rm

an
ce
 m

on
ito
rin
g 

by
 H
S
C
B
 is
 c
ur
re
nt
ly
 

in
ad

eq
ua
te
 a
nd

 it
 d
oe

s 
no
t r
ec
ei
ve
 n
or
 e
ffe

ct
iv
el
y 

an
al
ys
e 
su
ffi
ci
en
t 

in
fo
rm

at
io
n 
to
 o
ffe

r 
an
 

ac
cu
ra
te
 o
ve
rs
ig
ht
 o
f 

ag
en
ci
es
’ s
af
eg
ua

rd
in
g 

pr
ac
tic
e 
(p
ar
a 
50
) 

E
ns
ur
e 
th
at
 s
uf
fic
ie
nt
 

in
fo
rm

at
io
n 
is
 g
iv
en

 
to
, a

nd
 e
ffe
ct
iv
el
y 

an
al
ys
ed
 b
y,
 th
e 

H
S
C
B
 to

 in
cl
ud
e 
th
e 

ou
tc
om

es
 o
f s
in
gl
e 

an
d 
m
ul
ti-
ag
en

cy
 

au
di
ts
 s
o 
th
at
 it
 c
an
 

ef
fe
ct
iv
el
y 
m
on
ito
r 

sa
fe
gu

ar
di
ng

 a
nd

 
ch
ild
 p
ro
te
ct
io
n 
an
d 

ho
ld
 a
ge

nc
ie
s 
to
 

ac
co
un

t. 
 

H
ila
ry
 H
al
l, 

H
ea
d 
of
 

Q
ua
lit
y 
an

d 
Im

pr
ov
em

en
t 

Q
ua
lit
y 

A
ss
ur
an
ce
 a
nd
 

E
va
lu
at
io
n 
su
b 

gr
ou
p,
 H
S
C
B
 

D
ev
is
e 
m
od
el
 fo

r 
ag
en

ci
es
 to

 
us
e 
to
 g
iv
e 
ef
fe
ct
iv
e 
in
fo
rm

at
io
n 

to
 Q
A
 g
ro
up

 

F
ro
m
 

Ja
nu
ar
y 
20

11
 

P
er
fo
rm

an
ce
 

fr
am

ew
or
k 

de
ve
lo
pe

d 
– 
to
 b
e 

ag
re
ed

 b
y 
Q
A
 s
ub

 
gr
ou
p 
– 
F
eb
ru
ar
y 

20
11

 a
nd

 
im
pl
em

en
te
d 
fr
om

 
M
ar
ch
 2
01

1 
al
on

gs
id
e 
re
fr
es
h 
of
 

ro
le
 a
nd
 m

em
be
rs
hi
p 

S
ue
 D
oh

en
y,
 

D
ire
ct
or
 o
f 

Q
ua
lit
y 
an

d 
C
lin
ic
al
 

Le
ad

er
sh
ip
 

H
S
C
B
 S
tr
at
eg

ic
 

B
oa
rd
 

E
ns
ur
e 
ef
fe
ct
iv
e 
an

al
ys
is
 o
f 

in
fo
rm

at
io
n 
th
ro
ug

h 
Q
A
 g
ro
up
 

m
em

be
rs
hi
p 
an

d 
op

er
at
in
g 

m
od
el
 

F
ro
m
 

F
eb
ru
ar
y 

20
11

 

41



K
im
 D
ra
ke
, A

ss
is
ta
nt
 D
ire
ct
or
; S

af
eg

ua
rd
in
g 
an
d 
V
ul
ne

ra
bl
e 
C
hi
ld
re
n 
S
er
vi
ce
 

T
el
: (
01
43

2)
 2
61

60
3 
E
m
ai
l: 
kd
ra
ke
@
he
re
fo
rd
sh
ire
.g
ov
.u
k 

3 

R
ef
 

A
re
a 
fo
r 
im
p
ro
ve
m
en
t 
 

O
u
tc
o
m
es
 t
o
 

ac
h
ie
ve
 

L
ea
d
 o
ff
ic
er
 

R
ep
o
rt
in
g
 t
o
 

(a
cc
o
u
n
ta
b
le
 

b
o
d
y)
 

K
ey
 a
ct
io
n
s 

T
im
es
ca
le
s 

P
ro
g
re
ss
 

6.
4 

S
ev
er
al
 a
sp
ec
ts
 o
f H

S
C
B
 

pe
rf
or
m
an
ce
 fr
am

ew
or
k 

ha
ve
 y
et
 to

 b
e 
de

ve
lo
pe
d 

(p
ar
a 
50
) 

Im
pl
em

en
t w

ho
le
 

pe
rf
or
m
an
ce
 

fr
am

ew
or
k 
fo
r 

H
S
C
B
  

E
ns
ur
e 
th
at
 H
S
C
B
 

ha
s 
su
ffi
ci
en
t 

op
er
at
io
na
l 

ca
pa
ci
ty
 to

 p
er
fo
rm

 
its
 r
ol
e 
ef
fe
ct
iv
el
y.
  

H
ila
ry
 H
al
l, 

H
ea
d 
of
 

Q
ua
lit
y 
an

d 
Im

pr
ov
em

en
t 

an
d 
S
ue

 
D
oh
en

y,
 

D
ire
ct
or
 o
f 

Q
ua
lit
y 
an

d 
C
lin
ic
al
 

Le
ad

er
sh
ip
 

H
S
C
B
 S
tr
at
eg

ic
 

B
oa
rd
 

D
ev
el
op

 a
nd
 a
gr
ee
 

pe
rf
or
m
an
ce
 fr
am

ew
or
k 

Im
pl
em

en
t p
er
fo
rm

an
ce
 

fr
am

ew
or
k 

 M
on

ito
r 
im
pl
em

en
ta
tio
n 

  A
gr
ee

 m
od
el
 fo

r 
fu
tu
re
 b
us
in
es
s 

un
it 
in
 c
on
ju
nc
tio
n 
w
ith
 A
du

lt 
S
af
eg
ua
rd
in
g 
B
oa
rd
 

R
ec
ru
it 
to
 b
us
in
es
s 
un

it 

Ja
nu
ar
y 
20

11
 

 F
ro
m
 

F
eb
ru
ar
y 

20
11

 
F
ro
m
 A
pr
il 

20
11

 
 N
ov
em

be
r 

20
10

 
 Ja
nu
ar
y 
20

11
 

T
o 
be
 a
gr
ee

d 
at
 

F
eb
ru
ar
y 
20

11
 Q
A
 

su
b 
gr
ou

p 
an

d 
im
pl
em

en
te
d 
fr
om

 
M
ar
ch
 2
01

1 
Im

pl
em

en
ta
tio
n 
to
 b
e 

m
on
ito
re
d 
th
ro
ug
h 

su
b 
gr
ou

p 
M
od
el
 a
gr
ee

d 
by
 

S
tr
at
eg

ic
 B
oa
rd
 –
 

Ja
nu
ar
y 
20

11
 

R
ec
ru
itm

en
t 

un
de
rw
ay
 –
 F
eb

ru
ar
y 

20
11

 

7.
1 

T
he
 c
ou
nc
il 
ha
s 
no

t 
en
su
re
d 
su
ffi
ci
en
t 

aw
ar
en

es
s 
of
 th
ei
r 

co
m
pl
ai
nt
s 
pr
oc
es
s 
an

d 
ea
rly
 r
es
ol
ut
io
n 
of
 

co
m
pl
ai
nt
s 
is
 n
ot
 

re
co
rd
ed
 a
nd
 a
na

ly
se
d 
to
 

id
en

tif
y 
tr
en

ds
 (
pa
ra
 3
5)
 

T
he
re
 is
 li
m
ite
d 
ev
id
en

ce
 

th
at
 y
ou

ng
 p
eo

pl
e 
ar
e 

ap
pr
op

ria
te
ly
 e
nc
ou
ra
ge

d 
an
d 
en
ab

le
d 
to
 c
om

pl
ai
n 

an
d 
co
m
m
en
t t
hr
ou
gh

 th
e 

co
m
pl
ai
nt
s 
pr
oc
es
s.
  T

he
 

vi
ew

 o
f t
he

 c
ou
nc
il 
is
 th
at
 

in
fo
rm

al
 s
ys
te
m
s 
ar
e 

us
ed
 e
ffe

ct
iv
el
y 
to
 

re
so
lv
e 
is
su
es
 (
pa

ra
 7
4)
 

   

E
ns
ur
e 
th
at
 

ch
ild
re
n 
an

d 
yo
un
g 

pe
op

le
 k
no

w
 h
ow

 
to
 m

ak
e 
a 

co
m
pl
ai
nt
, a

nd
 th

at
 

ea
rly
 r
es
ol
ut
io
n 
of
 

co
m
pl
ai
nt
s 
is
 

re
co
rd
ed
, t
he
m
es
 

ar
e 
id
en
tif
ie
d 
to
 

le
ar
n 
le
ss
on
s,
 a
nd

 
ap
pr
op

ria
te
 a
ct
io
n 

is
 ta
ke
n 

C
Y
P
D
 is
 a
bl
e 
to
 

an
al
ys
e 
tr
en
ds
 a
nd
 

im
pr
ov
e 
se
rv
ic
es
 

ac
co
rd
in
gl
y 

H
ila
ry
 H
al
l, 

H
ea
d 
of
 

Q
ua
lit
y 
an

d 
Im

pr
ov
em

en
t 

C
Y
P
D
 

D
ire
ct
or
at
e 

Le
ad

er
sh
ip
 

T
ea
m
 

E
ns
ur
e 
th
at
 c
om

pl
ai
nt
s 
le
af
le
ts
 

se
nt
 o
ut
 to
 a
ll 
se
rv
ic
e 
us
er
s 
at
 

po
in
t o
f c
on
ta
ct
 w
ith
 d
ire
ct
or
at
e 

E
ns
ur
e 
al
l C

Y
P
D
 s
ta
ff 
aw

ar
e 
of
 

th
ei
r 
re
sp
on
si
bi
lit
y 
to
 

di
ss
em

in
at
e 
co
m
pl
ai
nt
s 

in
fo
rm

at
io
n.
 

 D
ev
is
e 
sy
st
em

 fo
r 
co
lla
tin
g 

‘s
of
t’ 
in
fo
rm

at
io
n 
re
 p
ot
en

tia
l 

co
m
pl
ai
nt
s 
an

d 
ea
rly
 r
es
ol
ut
io
n,
 

re
po
rt
in
g 
to
 D
LT

 
 R
ep
or
t  
bi
 a
nn

ua
lly
 to

 C
or
po

ra
te
 

pa
re
nt
in
g 
pa

ne
l a
nd

 S
&
V
C
 

S
M
T
 fo

r 
ch
an
ge
s 
to
 s
er
vi
ce
 

N
ov
em

be
r 

20
10

 
 F
ro
m
 

D
ec
em

be
r 

20
10

 –
 

qu
ar
te
rly
 

up
da

te
s 

Ja
nu
ar
y 
20

11
 

   F
ro
m
 A
pr
il 

20
11

 

C
om

pl
et
ed

 
  A
tte

nd
an

ce
 a
t t
ea
m
 

m
ee
tin
gs
 –
 J
an

ua
ry
 

to
 M
ar
ch
 2
01

1 
 S
ys
te
m
 to
 b
e 

im
pl
em

en
te
d 
th
ro
ug

h 
ca
se
 n
ot
e 
al
er
ts
 o
n 

F
ra
m
ew

or
ki
 

O
n 
sc
he
du

le
 

42



K
im
 D
ra
ke
, A

ss
is
ta
nt
 D
ire
ct
or
; S

af
eg

ua
rd
in
g 
an
d 
V
ul
ne

ra
bl
e 
C
hi
ld
re
n 
S
er
vi
ce
 

T
el
: (
01
43

2)
 2
61

60
3 
E
m
ai
l: 
kd
ra
ke
@
he
re
fo
rd
sh
ire
.g
ov
.u
k 

4 

R
ef
 

A
re
a 
fo
r 
im
p
ro
ve
m
en
t 
 

O
u
tc
o
m
es
 t
o
 

ac
h
ie
ve
 

L
ea
d
 o
ff
ic
er
 

R
ep
o
rt
in
g
 t
o
 

(a
cc
o
u
n
ta
b
le
 

b
o
d
y)
 

K
ey
 a
ct
io
n
s 

T
im
es
ca
le
s 

P
ro
g
re
ss
 

7.
2 

E
le
ct
ro
ni
c 
re
co
rd
in
g 

sy
st
em

 d
oe
s 
no
t 

ef
fe
ct
iv
el
y 
su
pp

or
t 

ef
fe
ct
iv
e 
de

liv
er
y 
of
 

ch
ild
re
n’
s 
so
ci
al
 c
ar
e 

so
ci
al
 w
or
ke
rs
 a
nd
 s
ta
ff 

or
 p
ro
vi
de

 u
se
fu
l 

m
an
ag
em

en
t i
nf
or
m
at
io
n 

or
 p
er
fo
rm

an
ce
 r
ep
or
ts
 

(p
ar
a 
51
) 

Im
pr
ov
e 
th
e 

el
ec
tr
on

ic
 

re
co
rd
in
g 
sy
st
em

 
so
 th
at
 it
 c
an

 
pr
od
uc
e 
ac
cu
ra
te
 

in
fo
rm

at
io
n 
an
d 

pe
rf
or
m
an
ce
 c
an
 

be
 e
ffe

ct
iv
el
y 

m
on
ito
re
d.
 

H
ila
ry
 H
al
l, 

H
ea
d 
of
 

Q
ua
lit
y 
an

d 
Im

pr
ov
em

en
t 

F
ra
m
ew

or
ki
 

B
us
in
es
s 

S
tr
at
eg

y 
F
or
um

 
S
&
V
C
 S
en

io
r 

M
an
ag

em
en
t 

T
ea
m
 

D
ire
ct
or
at
e 

Le
ad

er
sh
ip
 

T
ea
m
 

R
ec
on
fig
ur
e 
F
ra
m
ew

or
ki
 

ep
is
od

es
 a
nd

 r
ep

or
tin
g 

fu
nc
tio
ns
 in
 li
ne

 w
ith
 a
ct
io
n 
pl
an

 
T
ra
in
 s
ta
ff 
on
 a
ny
 c
ha

ng
es
 

  A
gr
ee

 k
ey
 c
ha

ng
es
 th
ro
ug
h 

S
M
T
 

O
ct
ob
er
 2
01

0 
– 
M
ar
ch
 2
01

1 
 O
ct
ob
er
 2
01

0 
– 
M
ar
ch
 2
01

1 
 O
ct
ob
er
 2
01

0 
– 
M
ar
ch
 2
01

1 

U
nd
er
w
ay
 a
nd

 o
n 

sc
he
du
le
 

 U
nd
er
w
ay
 a
nd

 o
n 

sc
he
du
le
 

 U
nd
er
w
ay
 

7.
3 

M
on

ito
rin

g 
by
 th

e 
co
un
ci
l 

of
 a
ct
io
ns
 ta
ke
n 
fo
llo
w
in
g 

au
di
ts
 is
 v
ar
ia
bl
e 
an

d 
no

t 
co
ns
is
te
nt
ly
 r
es
ul
te
d 
in
 

si
gn
ifi
ca
nt
 im

pr
ov
em

en
t 

(p
ar
a 
51
) 

E
ns
ur
e 
th
at
 th

er
e 

is
 e
ffe

ct
iv
e 

pe
rf
or
m
an
ce
 

m
on
ito
rin
g 

in
cl
ud

in
g 

su
ffi
ci
en
tly
 in
 d
ep
th
 

au
di
tin
g 
w
hi
ch
 

en
su
re
s 
go

od
 a
nd
 

tim
el
y 
so
ci
al
 w
or
k 

re
sp
on
si
ve
ne

ss
, 

as
se
ss
m
en
t a
nd
 

ca
re
 p
la
nn

in
g.
  

A
ud

its
 u
nd

er
ta
ke
n 

by
 c
hi
ld
re
n’
s 
so
ci
al
 

ca
re
 a
re
 in
 d
ep
th
 

an
d 
ro
bu
st
ly
 

ch
al
le
ng

in
g 

pr
ac
tic
e 
an

d 
sy
st
em

s 
to
 e
ns
ur
e 

th
at
 o
ut
co
m
es
 fo

r 
ch
ild
re
n 
ar
e 
go

od
 

C
hr
is
 B
ai
rd
, 

A
ss
is
ta
nt
 

D
ire
ct
or
, 

P
la
nn

in
g,
 

P
er
fo
rm

an
ce
 

an
d 

D
ev
el
op

m
en
t 

an
d 
H
ila
ry
 H
al
l, 

H
ea
d 
of
 

Q
ua
lit
y 
an

d 
Im

pr
ov
em

en
t 

S
&
V
C
 S
en

io
r 

M
an
ag

em
en
t 

T
ea
m
 

C
Y
P
D
 Q
ua

lit
y 

A
ss
ur
an
ce
 

G
ro
up

 

R
ev
ie
w
 a
nd

 r
ev
is
e 
cu
rr
en
t a

ud
it 

to
ol
 

  R
ev
is
e 
pr
og

ra
m
m
e 
fo
r 
au
di
ts
 

w
ith
 fo

cu
s 
on

 k
ey
 a
re
as
  

 D
ev
is
e 
m
on
ito
rin

g 
to
ol
 fo

r 
us
e 

ac
ro
ss
 th
e 
di
re
ct
or
at
e 

Q
ua
lit
y 
as
su
re
 a
ud
it 
pr
oc
es
s 

an
d 
ac
tio
ns
 to
 e
ns
ur
e 
ch
an

ge
s 

m
ad
e 

D
ec
em

be
r 

20
10

 
  D
ec
em

be
r 

20
10

 
  D
ec
em

be
r 

20
10

 
B
i-m

on
th
ly
 

re
po
rt
s 

st
ar
tin
g 

F
eb
ru
ar
y 

20
11

 

R
ev
is
io
ns
 to
 to

ol
 a
nd

 
pr
og
ra
m
m
e 

co
ns
id
er
ed

 a
nd
 

m
ad
e.
   

P
ro
gr
am

m
e 
of
 in
 

de
pt
h 
m
ul
ti 

di
sc
ip
lin
ar
y 
au
di
ts
 in
 

pl
ac
e.
   

C
om

pl
et
ed

 
 R
ep
or
ts
 o
n 
pr
og

re
ss
 

an
d 
le
ar
ni
ng

 to
 c
om

e 
th
ro
ug

h 
th
e 
Q
A
G
. 

T
ra
in
in
g 
fo
r 
H
ea

ds
 o
f 

S
er
vi
ce
 a
nd
 s
er
vi
ce
 

m
an
ag
er
s 
be
in
g 

co
ns
id
er
ed

. 

7.
5 

T
he
 C
ou
nc
il 
cu
rr
en
tly
 

do
es
 n
ot
 h
av
e 
an

 
in
de

pe
nd
en

t v
is
iti
ng

 
se
rv
ic
e 
an

d 
is
 in
 p
ro
ce
ss
 

of
 n
eg
ot
ia
tin
g 
a 
co
nt
ac
t t
o 

de
liv
er
 o
ne

 (
pa
ra
 6
8)
 

E
ns
ur
e 
th
at
 a
n 

in
de

pe
nd
en

t v
is
ito
r 

se
rv
ic
e 
is
 

es
ta
bl
is
he

d 

D
an
ie
l 

C
ra
m
pt
on
, 

H
ea
d 
of
 

S
af
eg
ua
rd
in
g 

an
d 
R
ev
ie
w
 

C
Y
P
D
 

D
ire
ct
or
at
e 

Le
ad

er
sh
ip
 

T
ea
m
 

S
co
pe
 a
nd

 c
os
t r
eq
ui
re
m
en
ts
 

R
ep
or
t t
o 
D
LT

 
M
ar
ch
 2
01

1 
T
o 
be
 d
is
cu
ss
ed
 a
nd
 

w
ay
 fo

rw
ar
d 
ag
re
ed
 

at
 S
&
V
C
 b
ud

ge
t 

m
ee
tin
g 
on
 8
 

F
eb
ru
ar
y 
20

11
 

43



K
im
 D
ra
ke
, A

ss
is
ta
nt
 D
ire
ct
or
; S

af
eg

ua
rd
in
g 
an
d 
V
ul
ne

ra
bl
e 
C
hi
ld
re
n 
S
er
vi
ce
 

T
el
: (
01
43

2)
 2
61

60
3 
E
m
ai
l: 
kd
ra
ke
@
he
re
fo
rd
sh
ire
.g
ov
.u
k 

5 

R
ef
 

A
re
a 
fo
r 
im
p
ro
ve
m
en
t 
 

O
u
tc
o
m
es
 t
o
 

ac
h
ie
ve
 

L
ea
d
 o
ff
ic
er
 

R
ep
o
rt
in
g
 t
o
 

(a
cc
o
u
n
ta
b
le
 

b
o
d
y)
 

K
ey
 a
ct
io
n
s 

T
im
es
ca
le
s 

P
ro
g
re
ss
 

8.
1 

T
he
 c
ur
re
nt
 s
ex
ua
l 

as
sa
ul
t e

xa
m
in
at
io
n 

ar
ra
ng
em

en
ts
 fo

r 
ch
ild
re
n 

an
d 
yo
un
g 
pe
op

le
 a
re
 n
ot
 

re
so
ur
ce
d 
w
ith
 

ap
pr
op

ria
te
ly
 q
ua

lif
ie
d 

an
d 
ex
pe
rie

nc
ed
 

cl
in
ic
ia
ns
 to

 c
on

du
ct
 

ex
am

in
at
io
ns
 (
pa

ra
 3
6)
 

E
ns
ur
e 
th
at
 w
he
re
 

th
er
e 
ar
e 
co
nc
er
ns
 

th
at
 c
hi
ld
re
n 
an
d 

yo
un

g 
pe
op

le
 h
av
e 

be
en

 s
ex
ua
lly
 

ab
us
ed

, t
he

y 
ha

ve
 

ac
ce
ss
 to
 ti
m
el
y 

as
se
ss
m
en
ts
 in
 a
 

su
ita
bl
e 

en
vi
ro
nm

en
t w

ith
 

ap
pr
op

ria
te
ly
 

tr
ai
ne

d 
an

d 
ex
pe
rie

nc
ed
 

cl
in
ic
ia
ns
 

N
ei
l F
ra
se
r,
 

D
es
ig
na

te
d 

D
oc
to
r 

H
S
C
B
 

R
ev
ie
w
 c
om

m
is
si
on
in
g 

ar
ra
ng
em

en
ts
 fo

r 
 

ch
ild
re
n/
yo
un

g 
pe
op

le
 w
ho

 m
ay
 

ha
ve
 b
ee
n 
se
xu
al
ly
 a
ss
au

lte
d 

an
d 
de

ve
lo
p 
se
rv
ic
e 

sp
ec
ifi
ca
tio
ns
 to
 u
nd
er
pi
n 
th
e 

se
rv
ic
e.
 

R
ec
om

m
is
si
on
 th
e 
se
rv
ic
e 

 

31
 M

ar
ch
 

20
11

 
N
ew

 c
om

m
is
si
on
in
g 

ar
ra
ng
em

en
ts
 

ag
re
ed

 in
 p
rin

ci
pl
e 

w
ith
 W

or
ce
st
er
sh
ire
 

8.
3 

W
ith
in
 N
H
S
H
 la
ck
 o
f 

un
de
rs
ta
nd

in
g 
an
d 

pr
ac
tic
e 
of
 ‘b
es
t i
nt
er
es
t’ 

de
ci
si
on

 m
ak
in
g 
w
ith
 

in
ap

pr
op
ria

te
 u
se
 o
f d

at
a 

pr
ot
ec
tio
n 
an

d 
co
nf
id
en
tia
lit
y 
fo
r 
16
-1
8 

ye
ar
 o
ld
s 
(p
ar
a 
38

) 

E
ns
ur
e 
al
l C

A
M
H
s 

pr
ac
tit
io
ne

rs
 a
re
 

aw
ar
e 
an

d 
im
pl
em

en
t ‘
be
st
 

in
te
re
st
 d
ec
is
io
n 

m
ak
in
g’
 fo

r 
al
l 

yo
un

g 
pe
op

le
 

Ly
nn

e 
R
en
to
n,
 

H
ea
d 
of
 

S
af
eg
ua
rd
in
g,
 

N
H
S
H
 a
nd

 
H
az
el
 

B
la
nk
le
y,
 

N
am

ed
 N
ur
se
 

N
H
S
 

H
er
ef
or
ds
hi
re
 

B
oa
rd
 

E
xp
lo
re
 th

e 
cu
rr
en
t t
ra
in
in
g 

pr
ov
id
ed

 o
n 
C
lin
ic
al
 c
on

fe
re
nc
e 

da
ys
 r
e 
ex
tr
ap
ol
at
in
g 
M
C
A
 

tr
ai
ni
ng
 to

 e
na

bl
e 
m
or
e 
in
 d
ep
th
 

se
ss
io
ns
 to
 b
e 
de

liv
er
ed
 fo

r 
th
e 

M
en
ta
l h
ea

lth
 D
ire
ct
or
at
e 
an

d 
ot
he
r 
cl
in
ic
ia
ns
 w
ho
se
 r
ol
e 

su
gg
es
ts
 th

ey
 n
ee

d 
su
ch
 

tr
ai
ni
ng
   

E
ns
ur
e 
al
l C

A
M
H
s 
pr
ac
tit
io
ne
rs
 

ar
e 
aw

ar
e 
an

d 
im
pl
em

en
t ‘
be
st
 

in
te
re
st
 d
ec
is
io
n 
m
ak
in
g’
 fo

r 
al
l 

yo
un

g 
pe
op

le
 b
y 
gr
ou

p 
se
ss
io
ns
 

31
 M

ar
ch
 

20
11

 
Le
gi
sl
at
iv
e 
le
ad

 h
as
 

be
en

 a
pp

oi
nt
ed

 to
 

w
or
k 
ac
ro
ss
 th
e 

M
en
ta
l H

ea
lth
 

D
ire
ct
or
at
e 
(w
hi
ch
 

in
cl
ud

es
 C
A
M
H
S
) 

he
r 
ro
le
 in
cl
ud

es
 

M
en
ta
l H

ea
lth
 A
ct
, 

M
en
ta
l C

ap
ac
ity
 A
ct
, 

an
d 
S
af
eg
ua

rd
in
g.
 

E
xt
er
na

l c
on
su
lta
nt
 

em
pl
oy
ed

 to
 d
o 
a 

di
sc
re
te
 p
ie
ce
 o
f 

w
or
k 
ac
ro
ss
 th
e 

m
en
ta
l h
ea

lth
 

di
re
ct
or
at
e 
an

d 
ot
he
r 

di
re
ct
or
at
es
/a
ge

nc
ie
s 

to
 e
xp
lo
re
 th

e 
di
ss
em

in
at
io
n 
of
 

M
C
A
 k
no

w
le
dg

e 
an

d 
tr
ai
ni
ng
 w
ith
 a
 v
ie
w
 

to
 a
 r
e 
la
un
ch
. 

 

44



K
im
 D
ra
ke
, A

ss
is
ta
nt
 D
ire
ct
or
; S

af
eg

ua
rd
in
g 
an
d 
V
ul
ne

ra
bl
e 
C
hi
ld
re
n 
S
er
vi
ce
 

T
el
: (
01
43

2)
 2
61

60
3 
E
m
ai
l: 
kd
ra
ke
@
he
re
fo
rd
sh
ire
.g
ov
.u
k 

6 

R
ef
 

A
re
a 
fo
r 
im
p
ro
ve
m
en
t 
 

O
u
tc
o
m
es
 t
o
 

ac
h
ie
ve
 

L
ea
d
 o
ff
ic
er
 

R
ep
o
rt
in
g
 t
o
 

(a
cc
o
u
n
ta
b
le
 

b
o
d
y)
 

K
ey
 a
ct
io
n
s 

T
im
es
ca
le
s 

P
ro
g
re
ss
 

T
ra
in
in
g 
da
te
 fo

r 
C
A
M
H
S
 s
ta
ff 
se
t f
or
 

08
.0
2.
20

11
 r
e 
M
C
A
 

an
d 
be
st
 in
te
re
st
 

de
ci
si
on

 m
ak
in
g.
 

10
.1
 

D
el
ay
s 
in
 s
ha
rin

g 
de
ci
si
on

s 
fr
om

 s
tr
at
eg

y 
m
ee
tin
gs
 (
pa
ra
 4
6)
 

E
ns
ur
e 
th
at
 

m
in
ut
es
 fr
om

 c
hi
ld
 

pr
ot
ec
tio
n 
st
ra
te
gy
 

m
ee
tin
gs
 a
nd

 
di
sc
us
si
on
s 
ar
e 

sh
ar
ed
 w
ith
in
 

pr
es
cr
ib
ed
 

tim
es
ca
le
s.
  

Li
sa
 G
re
en

, 
H
ea
d 
of
 

F
ie
ld
w
or
k 

R
&
A
 S
er
vi
ce
 

Im
pr
ov
em

en
t 

G
ro
up

 
S
&
V
C
 S
en

io
r 

M
an
ag

em
en
t 

T
ea
m
 

D
ev
is
e 
im
pr
ov
ed

 s
ys
te
m
 fo
r 

en
su
rin

g 
im
m
ed
ia
te
 s
ha

rin
g 
of
 

de
ci
si
on

s 
D
ev
is
e 
m
on
ito
rin

g 
sy
st
em

 to
 

en
su
re
 th

is
 is
 h
ap

pe
ni
ng

 

Ja
nu
ar
y 
20

11
 

 Ja
nu
ar
y 
20

11
 

C
om

pl
et
ed
 –
 

de
di
ca
te
d 

ad
m
in
is
tr
at
iv
e 
st
af
f i
n 

pl
ac
e.
 

C
om

pl
ia
nc
e 
te
st
in
g 

to
 b
e 
un

de
rt
ak
en
 in
 

M
ar
ch
 2
01

1 

10
.4
 

R
ec
or
di
ng
 is
su
es
 (
pa
ra
 

47
):
 

§ 
re
tr
os
pe
ct
iv
e 
ca
se
 

an
d 
su
pe
rv
is
io
n 

re
co
rd
in
g 

§ 
la
ck
 o
f c
hr
on
ol
og

ie
s 

§ 
st
ar
t m

ee
tin
gs
 n
ot
 

w
rit
te
n 
up
 p
ro
m
pt
ly
 

§ 
ch
ild
 p
ro
te
ct
io
n 

co
nf
er
en
ce
 m

in
ut
es
 

no
t p
ro
du
ce
d 
fo
r 

se
ve
ra
l w

ee
ks
 

§ 
re
co
rd
s 
ke
pt
 in
 

di
ffe

re
nt
 p
la
ce
s 
on
 

sy
st
em

 
 N
ot
 a
ll 
LA

C
 c
as
es
 h
av
e 

ch
ro
no
lo
gi
es
 m

ak
in
g 
it 

di
ffi
cu
lt 
to
 u
nd

er
st
an
d 

fa
m
ily
 h
is
to
ry
 (
pa
ra
 7
7)
 

E
ns
ur
e 
th
at
 a
ll 

ca
se
 fi
le
s 
ha

ve
 

co
m
pl
et
e 

ch
ro
no
lo
gi
es
 a
nd

 
th
at
 c
as
e 
re
co
rd
in
g 

is
 u
p 
to
 d
at
e  
 

C
as
e 
re
co
rd
in
g 
fo
r 

lo
ok
ed
 a
fte

r 
ch
ild
re
n 
ne

ed
s 
to
 

co
ns
is
te
nt
ly
 o
f 

go
od

 q
ua

lit
y 
to
 

en
su
re
 th

at
 p
la
ns
 

an
d 
in
te
rv
en

tio
n 
is
 

fo
cu
ss
ed
 o
n 
ke
y 

ou
tc
om

es
 a
nd
 th

at
 

ch
ild
re
n 
an

d 
yo
un
g 

pe
op

le
 c
an

 b
e 

in
vo
lv
ed

 in
 th

is
 

pr
oc
es
s 
an
d 
ha

ve
 

go
od

 in
fo
rm

at
io
n 

re
co
rd
ed
 a
bo
ut
 k
ey
 

ev
en

ts
 in
 th

ei
r 
liv
es
 

 

Li
sa
 G
re
en

, 
H
ea
d 
of
 

F
ie
ld
w
or
k,
 

S
te
ph

an
ie
 

R
ow

le
s,
 in
te
rim

 
H
ea
d 
of
 L
A
C
 

an
d 
H
ila
ry
 H
al
l, 

H
ea
d 
of
 

Q
ua
lit
y 
an

d 
Im

pr
ov
em

en
t 

S
&
V
C
 S
en

io
r 

M
an
ag

em
en
t 

T
ea
m
 

C
le
ar
 in
st
ru
ct
io
n 
to
 s
ta
ff 
re
 

co
m
pl
ia
nc
e 
on

 th
is
 is
su
e 
an

d 
pr
ac
tic
e 
no

te
 w
ith
 g
ui
da

nc
e 
re
 

w
hy
 th

is
 im

po
rt
an
t 

T
em

pl
at
e 
fo
r 
ch
ro
no
lo
gi
es
 to

 b
e 

de
vi
se
d 
w
ith
 3
 m

on
th
 u
pd
at
e 
as
 

st
an
da
rd
 

      E
vi
de

nc
e 
im
pr
ov
em

en
ts
 

th
ro
ug

h 
on

go
in
g 
au

di
t 

pr
og
ra
m
m
e 

E
nd
 o
f 

N
ov
em

be
r 

20
10

 
  Ja
nu
ar
y 
20

11
 

       F
ro
m
 

F
eb
ru
ar
y 

20
11

 

P
ra
ct
ic
e 
no
te
 is
su
ed

 
– 
fu
rt
he
r 
no
te
 to

 b
e 

is
su
ed
 in
 F
eb

ru
ar
y 

20
11

 
 T
em

pl
at
e 
re
ce
iv
ed

 
fr
om

 C
or
el
og
ic
 a
nd
 

be
in
g 
te
st
ed
 fo

r 
im
pl
em

en
ta
tio
n 
– 
m
id
 

F
eb
ru
ar
y 
20

11
 

F
ur
th
er
 w
or
kf
or
ce
 

de
ve
lo
pm

en
t t
o 
be

 
un
de
rt
ak
en
 d
ur
in
g 

20
11

/2
01

2 
O
ng
oi
ng

 

45



K
im
 D
ra
ke
, A

ss
is
ta
nt
 D
ire
ct
or
; S

af
eg

ua
rd
in
g 
an
d 
V
ul
ne

ra
bl
e 
C
hi
ld
re
n 
S
er
vi
ce
 

T
el
: (
01
43

2)
 2
61

60
3 
E
m
ai
l: 
kd
ra
ke
@
he
re
fo
rd
sh
ire
.g
ov
.u
k 

7 

R
ef
 

A
re
a 
fo
r 
im
p
ro
ve
m
en
t 
 

O
u
tc
o
m
es
 t
o
 

ac
h
ie
ve
 

L
ea
d
 o
ff
ic
er
 

R
ep
o
rt
in
g
 t
o
 

(a
cc
o
u
n
ta
b
le
 

b
o
d
y)
 

K
ey
 a
ct
io
n
s 

T
im
es
ca
le
s 

P
ro
g
re
ss
 

10
.6
 

P
at
hw

ay
 p
la
ns
 a
re
 

co
m
pl
et
ed

 a
lth
ou

gh
 th
e 

qu
al
ity
 is
 v
ar
ia
bl
e 
an
d 
ar
e 

no
t f
ul
ly
 e
m
be
dd
ed
 in
 

pr
ac
tic
e 
or
 u
se
d 
as
 

w
or
ki
ng
 d
oc
um

en
t (
pa
ra
 

77
) 

C
ar
e 
pl
an
s 
an
d 
pa
th
w
ay
 

pl
an

s 
ar
e 
no

t a
lw
ay
s 

ce
nt
ra
l i
n 
w
or
k 

un
de
rt
ak
en
 w
ith
 c
hi
ld
re
n 

an
d 
yo
un
g 
pe
op

le
. (
pa
ra
 

77
) 

§ 
ca
re
 p
la
ns
 n
ot
 a
lw
ay
s 

up
da

te
d 
fo
llo
w
in
g 

ch
an
ge

 o
f 

ci
rc
um

st
an
ce
s 

§ 
pa
th
w
ay
 p
la
nn

in
g 
no

t 
al
w
ay
s 
de

ta
ile
d 
an

d 
cl
ea
r 

E
ns
ur
e 
th
at
 c
ar
e 

an
d 
pa
th
w
ay
 p
la
ns
 

ar
e 
of
 g
oo

d 
qu

al
ity
 

an
d 
re
gu

la
rly
 

up
da

te
d 
an
d 
th
at
 

th
ey
 a
re
 u
se
d 
to
 

de
liv
er
 e
ffe

ct
iv
e 

se
rv
ic
es
 to
 c
hi
ld
re
n 

an
d 
yo
un
g 
pe
op

le
 

S
te
ph

an
ie
 

R
ow

le
s,
 in
te
rim

 
H
ea
d 
of
 L
A
C
  

S
&
V
C
 S
en

io
r 

M
an
ag

em
en
t 

T
ea
m
 

D
ev
is
e 
cl
ea

r 
po

lic
y 
an

d 
gu
id
an
ce
 o
n 
pa
th
w
ay
 p
la
ns
 

 E
m
be
d 
pr
ac
tic
e 
an
d 

co
m
pl
ia
nc
e 
in
 lo
ok
ed
 a
fte

r 
se
rv
ic
e 

E
nd
 o
f 

D
ec
em

be
r 

20
10

 
F
ro
m
 

Ja
nu
ar
y 
20

11
 

U
nd
er
w
ay
 –
 d
el
ay
ed

 
aw

ai
tin
g 
ap

po
in
tm

en
t 

of
 n
ew

 A
T
M
 fo

r 
A
fte

rc
ar
e 
w
ho
 s
ta
rt
ed
 

31
 J
an

ua
ry
 2
01

1.
 

R
ev
is
ed
 ti
m
es
ca
le
 o
f 

M
ar
ch
 2
01

1 

D
an
ie
l 

C
ra
m
pt
on
, 

H
ea
d 
of
 

S
af
eg
ua
rd
in
g 

an
d 
R
ev
ie
w
 

C
Y
P
D
 Q
ua

lit
y 

A
ss
ur
an
ce
 

G
ro
up

 

M
on

ito
r 
th
ro
ug

h 
R
A
G
 r
at
in
g 
an
d 

au
di
t p
ro
ce
ss
 

 R
ep
or
t b

i-m
on
th
ly
 to

 C
Y
P
D
 

Q
ua
lit
y 
A
ss
ur
an
ce
 G
ro
up

 
 D
ev
el
op

 tr
ai
ni
ng
 a
nd

 
de
ve
lo
pm

en
t s
es
si
on
s 
fo
r 
st
af
f 

ba
se
d 
on
 is
su
es
 a
ris
in
g 

F
ro
m
 

D
ec
em

be
r 

20
10

 
F
ro
m
 

D
ec
em

be
r 

20
10

 
F
ro
m
 

Ja
nu
ar
y 
20

11
 

In
te
gr
at
ed
 in
to
 

ov
er
al
l d
ire
ct
or
at
e 

au
di
t p
ro
ce
ss
 

R
A
G
 fo

rm
s 
up
da
te
d 

an
d 
im
pl
em

en
te
d 

fr
om

 1
 J
an
ua
ry
 2
01
1 

A
w
ar
en

es
s 
se
ss
io
ns
 

be
in
g 
de

ve
lo
pe

d,
 to

 
co
m
m
en
ce
 in
 M

ar
ch
 

20
11

 

11
.1
 

M
an
ag

em
en
t c
ap
ac
ity
 

an
d 
ov
er
si
gh
t i
n 
re
fe
rr
al
 

an
d 
as
se
ss
m
en
t t
ea
m
 

(p
ar
a 
44
) 

E
ns
ur
e 
th
at
 th

er
e 

is
 s
uf
fic
ie
nt
 

m
an
ag
em

en
t 

ca
pa
ci
ty
 in
 th

e 
re
fe
rr
al
 a
nd
 

as
se
ss
m
en
t t
ea
m
 

an
d 
th
at
 m

an
ag

er
s 

ha
ve
 th

e 
ap
pr
op

ria
te
 s
ki
lls
 

an
d 
kn
ow

le
dg

e 
to
 

pe
rf
or
m
 th
ei
r 
ro
le
 

ef
fe
ct
iv
el
y.
 

Li
sa
 G
re
en

, 
H
ea
d 
of
 

F
ie
ld
w
or
k 

R
&
A
 S
er
vi
ce
 

Im
pr
ov
em

en
t 

G
ro
up

 

A
ss
es
s 
m
an
ag
em

en
t c
ap
ac
ity
 

in
 te

am
 a
nd
 e
m
pl
oy
 r
es
ou
rc
es
 

m
os
t e
ffe

ct
iv
el
y 

    D
ev
is
e 
w
or
kf
or
ce
 d
ev
el
op

m
en
t 

fo
r 
A
T
M
s 

  E
ns
ur
e 
in
du

ct
io
n 
fo
r 
ne

w
 

m
an
ag
er
 

31
 D
ec
em

be
r 

20
10

 
     31
 D
ec
em

be
r 

20
10

 
  13
 –
 1
8 

D
ec
em

be
r 

20
10

 
 

C
om

pl
et
ed
 –
 o
ne

 
te
am

 m
an
ag
er
 a
nd

 2
 

A
T
M
s.
  T

ea
m
 

re
co
nf
ig
ur
ed
 in
to
 tw

o 
su
b 
te
am

s,
 e
ac
h 

he
ad

ed
 u
p 
by
 a
n 

A
T
M
 

U
nd
er
w
ay
 –
 d
el
ay
ed

 
du
e 
to
 s
ic
kn
es
s 

ab
se
nc
e 
of
 o
ne
 A
T
M
 

 C
om

pl
et
ed

 

46



K
im
 D
ra
ke
, A

ss
is
ta
nt
 D
ire
ct
or
; S

af
eg

ua
rd
in
g 
an
d 
V
ul
ne

ra
bl
e 
C
hi
ld
re
n 
S
er
vi
ce
 

T
el
: (
01
43

2)
 2
61

60
3 
E
m
ai
l: 
kd
ra
ke
@
he
re
fo
rd
sh
ire
.g
ov
.u
k 

8 

R
ef
 

A
re
a 
fo
r 
im
p
ro
ve
m
en
t 
 

O
u
tc
o
m
es
 t
o
 

ac
h
ie
ve
 

L
ea
d
 o
ff
ic
er
 

R
ep
o
rt
in
g
 t
o
 

(a
cc
o
u
n
ta
b
le
 

b
o
d
y)
 

K
ey
 a
ct
io
n
s 

T
im
es
ca
le
s 

P
ro
g
re
ss
 

11
.3
 

E
va
lu
at
io
n 
of
 a
ll 
se
rv
ic
es
 

is
 n
ot
 s
ys
te
m
at
ic
. (
pa
ra
 

59
) 

E
ns
ur
e 
th
at
 

sy
st
em

at
ic
 

ev
al
ua

tio
n 
of
 

se
rv
ic
es
 in
fo
rm

s 
co
m
m
is
si
on
in
g 
 

C
hr
is
 B
ai
rd
, 

A
ss
is
ta
nt
 

D
ire
ct
or
, 

P
la
nn

in
g,
 

P
er
fo
rm

an
ce
 

an
d 

D
ev
el
op

m
en
t 

an
d 
P
hi
lip
pa

 
G
ra
nt
hi
er
, 

H
ea
d 
of
 

C
hi
ld
re
n’
s 

D
ev
el
op

m
en
t 

C
Y
P
D
 

D
ire
ct
or
at
e 

Le
ad

er
sh
ip
 

T
ea
m
 

C
hi
ld
re
n’
s 
T
ru
st
 

D
ev
el
op

 e
va
lu
at
io
n 
m
od
el
 fo

r 
C
Y
P
D
 

P
ilo
t m

od
el
 o
n 
id
en

tif
ie
d 

se
rv
ic
es
 

R
ol
l o
ut
 m

od
el
 a
cr
os
s 

di
re
ct
or
at
e 
se
rv
ic
es
 

M
ar
ch
 2
01

1 
 A
pr
il 
20

11
 

 F
ro
m
 J
un
e 

20
11

 

P
ar
t o
f i
ni
tia
l 

pr
io
rit
ie
s 
fo
r 

C
hi
ld
re
n’
s 

D
ev
el
op

m
en
t 

se
ct
io
n.
 

11
.5
 

T
he
re
 is
 li
m
ite
d 
ev
id
en

ce
 

of
 m

an
ag
em

en
t o
ve
rs
ig
ht
 

of
 c
as
es
 a
nd
 a
ud

its
 b
ei
ng
 

un
de
rt
ak
en
 b
y 
m
an
ag

er
s 

(p
ar
a 
80
) 

E
ns
ur
e 
go
od

 
m
an
ag
em

en
t 

ov
er
si
gh
t a

nd
 

qu
al
ita
tiv
e 

as
su
ra
nc
e 

ar
ra
ng
em

en
ts
 a
re
 

in
 p
la
ce
 w
hi
ch
 le
ad
 

to
 im

pr
ov
em

en
ts
 

S
te
ph

an
ie
 

R
ow

le
s,
 in
te
rim

 
H
ea
d 
of
 L
A
C
 

S
&
V
C
 S
en

io
r 

M
an
ag

em
en
t 

T
ea
m
 

C
Y
P
D
 Q
ua

lit
y 

A
ss
ur
an
ce
 

G
ro
up

 

E
m
be
d 
st
an
da
rd
 r
e 

m
an
ag
em

en
t o
ve
rs
ig
ht
 a
nd

 u
se
 

of
 s
up
er
vi
si
on
 te

m
pl
at
e 
on
 

lo
ok
ed
 a
fte

r 
ch
ild
re
n 
an

d 
yo
un
g 

pe
op

le
 c
as
es
. 

E
ns
ur
e 
re
gu

la
r 
au

di
ts
 o
f l
oo

ke
d 

af
te
r 
ch
ild
re
n 
an

d 
yo
un

g 
pe

op
le
 

fil
es
 a
ga

in
st
 s
er
vi
ce
 fr
am

ew
or
k 

R
ep
or
t r
eg

ul
ar
ly
 to

 A
ss
is
ta
nt
 

D
ire
ct
or
 fo

r 
Q
ua
lit
y 
A
ss
ur
an

ce
 

G
ro
up

 

E
nd
 o
f 

N
ov
em

be
r 

20
10

 
  F
ro
m
 

Ja
nu
ar
y 
20

11
 

 F
ro
m
 

F
eb
ru
ar
y 

20
11

 

S
up

er
vi
si
on

 te
m
pl
at
e 

be
in
g 
us
ed

 b
y 
th
e 

te
am

 
  U
nd
er
w
ay
 –
 r
ep

or
t t
o 

S
M
T
 in
 M

ar
ch
 2
01

1 
 F
or
m
s 
pa
rt
 o
f S

&
V
C
 

re
po
rt
 to

 Q
A
G
 

th
ro
ug

h 
H
ea

d 
of
 

S
af
eg
ua
rd
in
g 
an

d 
R
ev
ie
w
 

11
.6
 

T
he
re
 is
 n
o 
sy
st
em

at
ic
 

pr
oc
es
s 
to
 b
ui
ld
 u
p 
lo
ca
l 

in
te
lli
ge

nc
e 
ab

ou
t 

ef
fe
ct
iv
en
es
s 
of
 p
ro
vi
de

rs
 

ov
er
al
l i
n 
m
ee
tin
g 

id
en

tif
ie
d 
ne

ed
s 
(p
ar
a 
86
) 

E
st
ab

lis
h 

sy
st
em

at
ic
 

ap
pr
oa

ch
 to
 

ca
pt
ur
in
g 
lo
ca
l 

in
te
lli
ge

nc
e 
an

d 
in
fo
rm

in
g 
fu
tu
re
 

pl
ac
em

en
ts
 a
nd

 
co
m
m
is
si
on
in
g 

S
te
ph

an
ie
 

R
ow

le
s,
 in
te
rim

 
H
ea
d 
of
 L
A
C
 

S
&
V
C
 S
en

io
r 

M
an
ag

em
en
t 

T
ea
m
 

Jo
in
t 

C
om

m
is
si
on
in
g 

G
ro
up

 

D
ev
el
op

 m
od
el
 a
t p

la
ce
m
en
t 

pa
ne

l 
F
eb
ru
ar
y 

20
11

 
U
nd
er
w
ay
 –
 

P
la
ce
m
en
t P

an
el
 

no
w
 c
ap

tu
re
s 
th
is
 

in
fo
rm

at
io
n 
an
d 

H
ea
d 
of
 S
er
vi
ce
 

lia
is
in
g 
w
ith
 n
ew

 
C
on
tr
ac
ts
 M

an
ag

er
 

to
 e
m
be
d.
 

 
 

47



48



 

 
Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Kathy O’Mahony, Assistant Director, Community Operations 
Tel: 01432 260065 or Email: komahony@herefordshire.gov.uk  

  

MEETING: CHILDREN’S SERVICES SCRUTINY COMMITTE 

DATE: 11 MARCH 2011 

TITLE OF REPORT: CHILDREN & YOUNG PEOPLE DIRECTORATE 
REORGANISATION 

REPORT BY:  ASSISTANT DIRECTOR: COMMUNITY OPERATIONS 

 

CLASSIFICATION:  Open 

Wards Affected 

County-wide 

Purpose 

To update the Committee on the progress of the CYPD reorganisation and the development of 
locality team arrangements, and to report back to Scrutiny Committee on issues raised at the 
Members Seminar on 7th February 2011 on localities development. 

Recommendation(s) 

THAT Children’s Services Scrutiny Committee: 

(a) Note progress on the restructuring of Children and Young People’s Directorate 
Services. 

(b) Note the issues raised from the Children & Young People’s Directorate seminar on 7th 
February 2011. 

Key Points Summary 

• The children and young people’s directorate has been re-designed, and is now comprised of 
four divisions covering all statutory and essential business 

• An updated structure chart is attached (See Appendix A) 

• The restructure has resulted in a reduction of 35.4 FTE staff 

• Grant cuts and reductions in 2011/12 and beyond will have a significant impact on CYPD  
and further redesign work is now required to ensure have a sustainable structure as part of 
further redesign in the Council.   

• The members seminar on the 7th February 2011 outlined briefly progress in the restructure of 
CYPD and outlined in depth some of the work progressing in terms of the delivery of locality 
based multi agency services. 

AGENDA ITEM 9

49



• There is a good and growing body of evidence to suggest that the impact of the locality 
services is good. 

Alternative Options 

1. The reorganisation has been designed to ensure that statutory and essential business within 
Children’s Services can be delivered effectively and to make the most significant difference to 
the lives of children, young people & families within the directorate, and will be sustainable 
and flexible given the financial climate. The changes reported in this report are agreed and  
almost fully implemented. There is no alternative presented to these changes 

Reasons for Recommendations 

2. Scrutiny committee have the opportunity to discuss the reorganisation of the CYPD service, 
 and the locality team developments, and to raise any further issues relating to these 
 developments. 

Introduction and Background 

3.     The current phase of the CYPD reorganisation is the third phase of the development of 
 Children’s Services. Phase 1 involved the reorganisation of the second tier of the 
 leadership team into 4 divisions, with four Assistant Directors. 

• Assistant Director - Community Operations 

• Assistant Director - Planning, Performance and Development 

• Assistant Director – Safeguarding and Vulnerable Children 

• Assistant Director Improvement and inclusion 

4. Further work was then undertaken in Phase 2 to reorganise the third tier of managers and 
as a result CYPD has established a high quality team of Heads of Service leading and 
managing services within each of the 4 divisions. The third phase of development involved 
restructuring the remaining services and staff across the whole directorate. The approach 
taken was a root and branch review of all that is provided. The leadership team established 
a delivery model and staffing structure based on the statutory requirements of what CYPD 
must deliver, together with some essential services and those provided through ring fenced 
grants. 

5. The consultation period for Phase 3 of the restructure of Children’s Services ended in 
October 2010 and the final agreed structure has been published (See Appendix A). Most 
internal recruitment has now been completed, however in the light of the 2011/12 
settlement and significant grant reductions a number of vacant posts will not be filled. 
Essential posts, those with specific technical skills which it has not been possible to fill 
internally, are being advertised externally, but posts not filled through internal recruitment 
will be recruited on an interim basis. 

The restructure has resulted in a reduction of 35.4 FTE posts compared with the original 
structure.   

As far as possible, reductions have been achieved through not filling vacancies and 
voluntary measures and by new vacancies being filled internally by staff who have been at 
risk in their original teams. The original projection of total individual redundancies for CYPD 

50



was 46. At time of writing this number has been reduced to 11 staff. The remaining staff 
have been successfully redeployed within the council, resigned, or applied for voluntary 
redundancy. The restructure will be completed by 1st April 2011, by which time all new staff 
will have taken up their new posts. 

6. The sections below outline the current responsibilities that sit within each division of the 
reorganised directorate: 

 Community Operations 

7. This division brings together a range of children’s services into two integrated operational 
locality teams – one covering the North and one the South of the county. The purpose of 
these teams will be to enable excellent targeting and service provision to children and 
families who need help meet their needs and to prevent their needs escalating. Prevention 
and early intervention will be the main focus, largely delivered through the common 
assessment framework, which is a multi agency framework to enable understanding family 
needs, which are met through enabling families to meet their own needs and by the delivery 
of services by all agencies working with children. The team will continue to provide some 
universal services to all families through for example Sure Start Children’s Centres. The 
teams will work with services who meet the complex needs of children and families, such as 
social care, to ensure together that the right level of service is provided to meet the need. 
The services in this section include: 

• Children’s centres, 

• Community youth services 

• Connexions personal advisors 

• Education welfare officers 

• Educational psychologists 

• Parenting and family support services 

8. All these services all transferred to Community Operations by 1st March 2011. In addition 
the team includes the new role of information and assessment coordinators, whose job it is 
to ensure that information is shared effectively across all partners, and ensure that the multi 
agency groups are well organised. 

9. Community operations are driving the delivery of the wider integrated locality arrangements 
for children young people and their families across the county as part of the generally 
approach to locality work in the county. Each team supports 4 multi agency groups in each 
half of the county.  The multi agency groups include a much wider group of professionals 
including health providers, police, housing, and voluntary and community providers to name 
but a few. The multi area group areas are Bromyard, Ledbury, Leominster and Mortimer, 
North City, South City, Kington & Weobley, Golden Valley, & Ross on Wye. A further post 
16 multi agency group is being established to cover the city colleges. 

 Planning, Performance and Development 

10. This division covers the following areas 

• School admissions and transport 

51



• Capital commissioning and planning, including early years sufficiency, settings, schools, 
and working with colleagues on 16+ provision 

• Quality and improvement of children’s services including audit, data, performance 
information and analysis and preparation for inspections 

• Systems support and development across all children’s services, particularly 
Frameworki and Tribal systems 

• Development and commissioning for children, young people and families (links with the      
integrated commissioning unit) 

• Support for the Safeguarding Board and other specific partnership arrangements.  

• Workforce strategy and development 

• Parent partnership, choice and advocacy 

• Information – including Youthzone, children and family information, children’s resource 
directory, and directorate activities 

• Business support for the directorate 

• Emergency planning 

• These functions are carried out with other services in the Council in partnership with 
schools, early year’s settings, colleges and third party providers. 

Safeguarding and Vulnerable Children 

11. This division works with children and young people who are the most vulnerable e.g; 

• Children in need 

• Children in need of protection 

• Looked after children and young people and care leavers 

• Children placed for adoption. 

• Children with a disability who require a social care service. 

12. The service is provided by a referral and assessment team based at the Town Hall covering 
the whole county, two locality aligned children in need teams working with children and 
families with the highest needs including those with significant disabilities and those who 
are at risk of significant harm within their families. 

13. A new looked after children and care leavers team has been developed to work across the 
county supporting children and young people who are in residential or foster care or who 
are looked after by a relative. 

14. The service recruits, trains and supports foster carers and adoptive parents for children and 
manages the placement of children in agency placements. 

15. The service also oversees the planning and quality of work for all looked after children and 
those subject to a child protection plan and ensure that these children and young people 
participate fully in decisions made about them as well as the design and delivery of these 
service. 

 

52



 Improvement and inclusion 

16. The purpose of this division is: 

• To ensure that each child and young person in Herefordshire has the best opportunity to 
participate, succeed and achieve 

• To ensure that all services, schools and settings develop and deliver universal high 
quality provision for all children and young people 

• To ensure that all services, schools and settings deliver their statutory responsibilities 

• To ensure that every setting operates at its best and that this is identified as high quality 
through the appropriate inspection frameworks 

• To design, deliver and implement key strategies to enable achievement and attainment 
for all children and young people 

• To enable the effective delivery of early support and intervention 

• To ensure effective commissioning and trading of services and skills to meet needs 

• To drive forward the improvement agenda for all within Herefordshire and to ensure we 
meet the performance targets set 

17. These core aims are delivered through three key strategic areas: 

• Improvement:  
Key functions within this area are the quality assurance, monitoring, support and 
intervention in order to ensure quality delivery and outcomes. The service develops 
strategic solutions to address critical areas of delivery and sets targets for performance 
and improvement for schools and settings. It also provides training and development of 
professional skills in order to raise the standards of delivery and enable challenging 
targets to be met. 

• Additional needs:  

This service provides skilled support and additional needs provision as well as providing 
challenge and support to all other services, schools and settings. This area of the 
service delivers the special educational needs statutory assessment function for the 
council and supports the design and delivery of strategic and operational plans to 
ensure all learners have full access to quality learning and engagement opportunities. 
This ensures that the children and young people with additional needs are effectively 
supported and fully included. 

• 11-19 integrated services:  

The key responsibility for this area is to provide a unified approach to the delivery of all 
aspects of the youth entitlement. This includes the design and delivery of the full range 
of young peoples learning and engagement opportunities, the processes and funding 
mechanisms to support their delivery and the full range of youth participation activities. 
A further responsibility is to ensure the provision of impartial information, advice and 
guidance to enable young people to achieve economic wellbeing. 

18. The Directorate Leadership Team (DLT) is currently working through the options in relation 
to the budget reductions and grant cuts in order to maintain essential services and operate 
effectively within the reduced financial budgets. In view of the extent of the budget 
reductions further reductions in posts are highly likely. 

19. The directorate management team continues to work to minimise the effects of the 
restructure on current staff through a number of initiatives including options for more flexible 
working (reduced hours – where appropriate to service delivery) and identifying potential 

53



alternative roles for those affected. A small number of staff have opted for voluntary 
redundancy and will be leaving the organisation before 31 March 2011. 

 Members seminar on 7th February 2011 

20. The Members’ seminar on the 7th February focused on updating Members briefly on the 
reorganisation, but in the main giving a detailed account of how the locality multi agency 
groups work, and how they are delivering to families and communities. 

21. On the whole feedback from members was that they found the seminar helpful.  

Key Considerations 

25     Some of the key considerations resulting from the member’s seminar include: 

• Further exploration in terms of what the voluntary sector can be commissioned to do 

• Progress welcomed in terms of ensuring all agencies like GPs and police actively 
involved in these developments – but is everyone joining in who should join in? 

• Concern that there might be ‘hidden’ waiting lists 

• Questions in terms of how Academies will be involved with localities 

• Will some services be charged for? 

• Some good and growing evidence of impact and good multi agency working was 
welcomed 

• How is demand managed? 

• Is this approach cost effective and sustainable in the medium to long term.   

26. There is ongoing work to explore how the third sector can be further commissioned and 
involved in the delivery of services. The locality teams are making very good use of all 
agencies skills and capacity to meet the needs of children, young people and their families. 
Good progress is being made to involve all the services across the board and particular 
note was made of the contribution and engagement of the police in particular, who are now 
seeking to align their boundaries with the HPS locality boundaries. The numbers of children 
whose needs are being met in this way continues to grow, with 10 – 15 children and young 
people and their families being discussed at every locality multi agency group meeting. 
There are some waiting lists for some services, but the strength of the locality model is that 
whilst a family are waiting for one specific service, there are often other services who will 
offer to support families in the meantime. 

27. Academies are already involved in the locality arrangements and some services will be 
 charged for. As with all services, the Academies will purchase the services they find to be 
 effective in meeting family needs. 

28. Demand is managed through sharing the work across all the agencies. The current 
arrangements are meeting demand. The approach taken is not one which relies entirely on 
the delivery of services from professionals to families but also relies on family resources 
and enabling families, with some support and guidance and confidence boosting, to do 
what they can for themselves to resolve their own issues. 

29 A further consideration resulting from the member’s seminar was how the impact of locality 
 work would be evaluated during 2011/12.    

30. The core purpose of the locality team will be to deliver in partnership with other agencies, a 
holistic package of support to families with emerging needs, to intervene early and 
effectively to prevent needs from escalating. The locality arrangements should lead to more 
effective targeting and less duplication, so driving better outcomes for children & families 

54



and making better use of scarce resources. In addition to the overarching performance 
indicators, some measures have been developed specifically to measure the difference the 
locality teams are making. A fairly straightforward approach to measuring the things which 
are considered to give an indication of how the work will impact on families and 
professionals has been taken. The list of performance measures is attached. See Appendix 
B. Further measures may be added as the work develops.  

 
31. Measures include: 

• Families feel their needs are being met appropriately and that their children's outcomes 
are improving. 

• The numbers of referrals to social care that do not result in social care delivering a 
service are reduced due to the needs being met in the locality. 

• Locality team staff are able to spend more time working with children, young people and 
families as travel time is reduced.  

 
32. Changes of this kind do take time to penetrate through the system, but a rigorous approach 

has been taken from the outset to understand the impact of the work and to measure the 
difference the arrangements in the localities are making. 

 

Community Impact 

33 The new structure in CYPD has been designed to maximise community impact by enabling 
closer working with communities and organising staff to work in patches to enable them to 
get to know their communities really well. 

34. The development of the locality multi agency groups has enables a much wider group of 
professionals to work together in local communities. Part of the multi agency meeting time 
is set aside to explore community needs and this adds an extra dimension to the meetings 
to enable a joint community approach across the agencies to be taken. There are already 
some good examples of this approach being taken. 

Financial Implications 

35. The final restructure proposal identified FTE savings of 35.4 with an estimated net reduction 
on the local authority budget of £840k. In order to maximise savings to the local authority 
strategic assumptions were made to maintain the maximum number of grant funded posts. 
It was recognised that there was an inherent risk in this approach as, at that point in time, 
no announcements about grant changes / budget settlement had been made. 

36. The financial settlement and grant changes announced for 2011/12 had a major impact on 
the funding for CYPD including the work funded by grants. The principle for budget setting 
for 2011/12 is that if a grant has ceased then the activity ceases, and this will have further 
implications in terms of the staffing for CYPD. 

37. There are, however, some areas where funding has been cut for statutory services or for 
services which continue to be a Council priority, for example improving primary education. 
The directorate leadership team is currently working through the implications of continued 
delivery of these priority services albeit in at a reduced level or through a change in 
approach / delivery method to assess the impact on the local authority budget. 

38. Confirmation of delivery of the full amount of the financial saving delivered through the 
restructure cannot therefore be confirmed until this work has been completed. 

55



Legal Implications 

39.     The restructure is funded through formula grant and a reduced number of specific grants. 
The use of budgets including grants must comply with the legal requirements associated 
with each funding stream and the conditions of specific grants. 

Risk Management 

40. A risk register is being maintained and monitored through the service re- design 
 implementation board.  

41. The risks in terms of the restructure are primarily associated with being unable to fill 
vacancies, delays in progressing the restructure, lack of staff engagement with new ways of 
working and the reorganisation not achieving the savings required. The service redesign 
implementation board and DLT are managing these risks. Good progress is being made in 
almost all areas. Further specific budget work is being undertaken currently with regard to 
the restructure achieving the required savings given the severe impact of further grant cuts 
and reductions in formula grant for 2011/12. 

Consultees 

42. In May 2010 the CYPD initial proposals outlining the future shape and direction of the 
 Directorate were outlined for consultation with staff.  

43. Following this initial period of consultation the proposals were further refined to develop the 
exact structure of the Directorate. The formal consultation period was held from 8th 
September 2010 until 8th December 2010. During this period CYPD Senior Managers 
consulted with staff, unions and key stakeholders on proposed structure changes. This was 
achieved through a variety of different mechanism: 

• Individual meetings with affected staff 

• Team meetings 

• Divisional meetings 

• Consultation meetings with relevant unions consultation groups; Directorate JCF, 
Teacher Trade Union Consultation meeting, Corporate JCF 

44. As part of the consultation period the following options in order to avoid compulsory 
redundancies were pursued: 

• Staff turnover 

• Recruitment freeze 

• Reducing agency / short –term casual contracts 

• Opportunities for flexible / part time working 

• Early retirement 

• Voluntary redundancy 

45. Following the consultation period all feedback was considered by DLT and the final 
structure for CYPD was developed and announced on 20th October 2011. 

46. All partners, key stakeholders and children & young people were consulted as part of the 
No Wrong Door project which established the locality team arrangements 

56



Appendices 

47. Appendix A – Children & Young Peoples Directorate Structure 

48. Appendix B – Performance Measures 

Background Papers 

Members Seminar Feedback 

CYPD restructure Risk Register 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

57



 

 
Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Kathy O’Mahony, Assistant Director, Community Operations 
Tel: 01432 260065 or Email: komahony@herefordshire.gov.uk  

  

 

 

Appendix A 

 

Children & Young People’s Directorate 

Confirmed Structure March 2011 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5
8



Community Operations 

 

 

 

 

Head of Locality Services
North

Senior 
Connexions 

PA 
Senior Youth 

Worker
Education 

Welfare Office

Health 
Visitors

CaMHS 
Locality 
Worker

Educational 
Psychologist

Schools 
Nurses Midwives

Family Key 
Worker

Children’s 
Centre Staff

Early Years 
Advisory 
Teacher Community 

Youth Workers 

Assistant 
Youth Workers 

EET PAs

Neet PAs

ZigZag 
Workers 

Assistant 
Educational 
Psychologists

TaMHS 
Locality 
WorkersSenior Family 

Key Worker

Integrated C&YP 
Support Lead

Children’s 
Centre 

Managers

Parenting & Family 
Support Manager 

 Information and 
Assessment Coordinator

Senior 
Educational 
Psychologists

Trainee 
Educational 
Psychologists

Safeguarding & 
Vulnerable 

Children Service 
– Children in 
Need team –

North

Aligned with 
locality 

boundaries.  
Line 

management 
with 

Safeguarding & 
Vulnerable 
Children

Aligned with locality 
boundaries.  Line 

management and clinical 
governance within health.

5
9



Community Operations 

 

 

 

 

Head of Locality Services
South

Senior 
Connexions 

PA

Senior Youth 
Worker

Education 
Welfare 
Officers 

Health 
Visitors

CaMHS 
Locality 
Worker  

Educational 
Psychologist

Schools 
Nurses

 Midwives

Family Key 
Worker

Children’s Centre 
Staff

Early Years 
Advisory 
Teachers

Community 
Youth Workers 

Assistant 
Youth Workers

EET PAs

Neet PAs

ZigZag 
Workers 

Assistant 
Educational 
Psychologists

TaMHS 
Locality 
Workers 

Aligned with locality 
boundaries.  Line management 
and clinical governance within 

health.

Senior 
Family Key 
Worker

Integrated C&YP 
Support Lead

Children’s 
Centre 

Managers

Parenting & 
Family Support 

Manager

 Information and 
Assessment 
Coordinator

Senior 
Educational 
Psychologists

Trainee 
Educational 
Psychologists

Safeguarding & 
Vulnerable Children 

Service
Children in Need 
team - South

Aligned with 
locality 

boundaries.  
Line 

management 
with 

Safeguarding & 
Vulnerable 
Children

6
0



Planning, Performance & Development  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Head of Access and Capital 
Commissioning

Admissions Officers 

Admissions Assistant 
x 0.4 vacant

Admissions and 
Transport Manager 

Transport Officers 
x 3

Transport Co-
ordinator

Transport Assistants 
 x 2 

Schools Organisation 
& Capital Investment 

Officers
x 1

Schools Organisation 
& Capital Investment 

Support Officer
x 1

Early Years 
Sufficiency Officer

x 1

Sufficiency Dev Co-
ordinator 

x 1

Sufficiency, Planning 
& Capital Investment 

Manager

Nursery Education 
Funding Administrator 

x 1

6
1



Planning, Performance & Development  

Head of Children’s Trust 
Development

Children’s Trust 
Development Officers 

x 1

Placement Officer 
x 1

Contracting Officer 
x 1

Children’s Trust Lead 
Officer 
x1

Information Officer 
x 1

Children’s Rights & 
Advocacy Officer 

x 1

Youthzone Officer 
x 0.5

Family Information 
Service Officer 

x 1

Parent Partnership Co-
ordinator 

x1

Parent Partnership 
Officer (Choice 

Advice) 
x 1

Parent Partnership 
Officer 
x 1

Workforce Strategy 
Manager 

x 1

Workforce 
Development Advisor 

(Safeguarding) 
x 1

Learning and 
Development Advisor 

x 1 

Workforce 
Development Advisor 

(Education) 
x 1

Learning & Workforce 
Development Advisor 

(C&YP)
x 1

Practice Educator 
x 1

Line management held with HR

6
2



Planning, Performance & Development  

 

 

 

Business Support
Quality & Improvement 

Managers 
(Performance 
Improvement) 

x 2

Quality & 
Improvement 

Manager (Systems) 
x 1

Quality & 
Improvement 

Officers (Systems) 
x 3

Quality and 
Improvement Officers 

x 5

See separate page for 
structure detail

Head of Quality and 
Improvement

HSCB and ASB 
Business Manager

 x 16
3



Planning, Performance & Development  

Quality and Improvement 
Manager 

(Business Support)

Business Support 
Officers 

x 2

Business Support 
Officers 

x 2

Business 
Support 

Assistants 
x 10.5

Business 
Support Officers 

x 4

Business Support 
Assistants

x 3

Quality and Improvement 
Manager (Business Support) 

Business Support 
Officers 

x 7

PAs to Ass Dirs & 
HoS 
x 4

PA to Children’s 
Trust
x 1

PA to HSCB 
x 1

Business Support 
Assistant 

x 5

Business Support 
Assistants

x 6.5

Head of Quality and 
Improvement

Senior Co-
ordinator 

x 1

Co-ordinators 
x 5

Personal Assistants
North & South 
Locality Teams

Central Services 
(I&I & PPD)

11-19 Integrated 
Services

Safeguarding & 
Vulnerable 

Adoption and 
Permanence Panel 

Coordinator 
x 1

Fostering Panel 
Coordinator  

x 1

Fostering Training 
Coordinator

x 1

6
4



Improvement & Inclusion  

 

Head of 11-19 Integrated Services

Learning & 
Curriculum Senior 

Advisor

Post 16 Senior 
Advisor

 Integrated Support 
Manager

Cx Senior 
Advisor (Core) 

 x 1

YouthZONE 
Co-ord  
x 1

Live & Learn 
Senior 
Co-ord 
x 1

Learning 
Engagement 

Advisor (NEET & 
Disadvantaged) 

 x 1

Post 16 Advisor 
(Employer 

Engagement) 
x 1

Post 16 Advisor 
(LLDD) 
x 0.81 

Post 16 Advisor 
 x 1

E2E PA
x 1

YMTB PA
 x 1

YOS PA
 x 1

SEN PAs
 x 1.6

Youth Involvement 
Worker
x 2

Lead Information 
Support 

Co-ordinator  
Traded Service

 x 1

Outdoor Education 
Advisor

x 1

Senior Youth Worker 
Extended Activities

 x 1

Outdoor Ed Dev 
Worker 
 x 1 

DoE Worker 
 x 1

 Apprentices
x 3 

Information 
Support Officer  
Traded Service x 

0.51

Work Experience 
Co-ord  
x 1

Learning 
Engagement 

Advisor (South / 
CD)
x 1

Learning 
Engagement 

Advisor (North / 
QA)
x 1

Live & Learn 
 Co-ord
x 1

Central Support 
Office 
x 1

Youth Offending 
Officer
 x 2.5

Facilities
 x 1.5

Managing 
Vacancies PA 

 x 1

6
5



 

Improvement & Inclusion  

 

Head of Additional Needs 

SEN & Equalities 
Adviser

Specialist VI 
Teacher
 x 1

Additional Needs 
Senior Casework 

Manager  
Specialist Support 

Development Manager  

Social 
Inclusion 
Officer

Senior SEN 
Officer

Learning 
Inclusion 

Consultant  x 1 

Equalities Team
 Leader (drawn 
from list below)

Senior Specialist 
HI Teacher 

x 1

Senior Specialist 
VI Teacher (incl. 

PD & AAC) 
x 1 

TA for Low 
Incidence Needs  

x 0.4 

Mobility Officer
 x 0.2

ICT Technician
 x 0.6

Specialist 
Teacher for 
Complex 

Communicat
ion 

Difficulties 
(ASC) x 1 

Assistant SEN 
Officer 
x 2 

SEN Officer
 x 2

Transition 
Support 

Co-ordinator  
x 1

Independent 
Travel 

Co-ordinator
 x 1 

Senior LAC 
Education Officer  

x 1 

LAC Teacher 
 x 0.5

LAC Play Officer  
x 0.4 

GRT Teacher  
 x 1

GRT Community 
Cohesion Officer 

x 1 

 EAL Teacher 
 x 2.7

TA for EAL
 x 1.5

Equalities & Anti-
bullying Officer

 x 0.5

Specialist HI 
Teachers
 x 2.5

Early Years HI 
Support Officer

 x 0.3

Communication 
Skills Officer

 x 0.6

EY 
Language & 
Communicat
ion Teacher  

x 1 

Team Leader Learning 
& Behaviour Team 

x 1

Senior 
Teacher 

Learning & 
Behaviour

 x 1

Learning 
Support 
Teachers

 x 2

Behaviour 
Support 
Teachers
 x 3.6

KS3 BESD 
PRU (Separate 

Staffing 
structure) 

KS4 BESD 
PRU (Separate 

Staffing 
structure)

 x 2

Senior Teacher 
for Medical 
Short Stay 
Provision

 x 1

TA for Medical 
Short Stay 
Provision 
 x 0.6

LAC Education 
Officer  x 1

Elective Home 
Education
Officer Sessional time for Braillists, 

Communicators and Home 
Tuition are additional to the 

posts shown 

Teaching 
Assistant -
Behaviour 
Support
Jeanette 
Farr

Specialist VI 
Teacher
 x 0.6

 Executive Headteacher 
for Behaviour

6
6



Improvement & Inclusion  

Head of Improvement

Governor 
Development 

Advisor 

Governor 
Development Co-

ordinator 
x 1

Governor Service 
Administrator x 1

Senior Advisor 
Primary

Primary 
Improvement 

Advisor
 x 5

Primary Curriculum 
Consultant 

x 6

Early Years 
Improvement 

Advisor 
x 1

EY Consultant 
Locality x 1

EY Consultant 
Locality x 1

CM Development 
Coordinator 

x 2

EY Development Co-
ordinator 

x 2

EY Consultant x 4

EY/KS1 EY 
Consultant

x 2

ICT Consultants 
x 3

Senior Advisor 
Secondary

Secondary 
Curriculum 

Consultant (Science) 
x 1

Secondary 
Curriculum 

Consultant (English)
 x 1

Secondary 
Curriculum 

Consultant (Maths) 
x 1

Behaviour, Attendance 
& Personal 

Development Strategy 
Manager 

Secondary 
Improvement 

Advisor (middle 
leadership & subject)

Secondary 
Improvement 

Advisor (assessment 
& performance) 

x 1

Cross Phase Healthy 
Schools Consultant 

x 1

Cross Phase Inclusion 
Transitions 
Improvement 
Consultant

x 1

Head of Music 
Service

Assistant Head of 
Music Service

Deputy Head of 
Music Service

30 Tutors 25 Tutors

Finance Officer

Office Manager

Admin Assistant

6
7



Safeguarding & Vulnerable Children  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

LACYP TEAM 
Team Manager

Assistant 
Team 

Manager 
x 2

Aftercare 
workers 

x 6

Family 
Support 
Workers 

x 2

Head of LACYP and Specialist Services
Head of Safeguarding and Review 

Head of Fieldwork

FOSTERING

Advanced 
Practitioner

x 1

Social Workers 
x 6.7

REFERRAL & 
ASSESSMENT Team 

Manager 

Assistant 
Team Manager 

x 2

Advanced 
Practitioner 

x 1

 SWS
x 5

Family 
Support 
Worker 
x 2 

CHILD WITH DISABILITY 
(CWD) Team Manager  

CHILD IN NEED 1 (CIN) 

Advanced 
Practitioner 

x 1

Social Worker 
x 4

Family Support 
Worker
x 2 

Advanced  
Practitioner

x 1

Social 
Workers 

x 5 

Family 
Support 
Worker 
x 1.5

ADOPTION 
 Team Manager

PLANNING & REVIEW & 
LADO P&P Managers 

PARTICIPATION 
VOICES/STEPS

Advanced 
Practitioner  

x 1 

SWS 
x 3.4 

Adoption 
Support 
 x 1

Theraputic 
Play Worker

x 1

Advanced 
Practitioner 

x 1

Participation 
Worker
x 1 

STEPS 
Sessional 

Workers x 1.6

Link Worker 
 until 31.3.11

ATM 
x 1

Customer 
Service 
Officer 
x 2.6

Social 
Worker 
x 4 SWS 

x 5

CHILD IN NEED 2 
(CIN) Team

Advanced  
Practitioner  
Vacant x 1

Social 
Worker
x 5

Family 
Support 
Worker 
x 1.5

ATM
 Carol Barker

Social 
Worker
x 4

Social 
Workers

x 5 
Social 
Workers

x 5

6
8



Appendix B 

 

Measuring the impact of locality teams - Performance measures  
 
Indicator Measure  Source & People 

    

Evaluation of earlier intervention   

 Appropriateness of  referrals made to Children’s 
Social Care; 

Number of social care referrals that go onto become 
an initial assessment/CAF/no further action 

FWi 

Service improvement   

 Number of step-down CAFs (Common Assessment 
Framework) 

As indicator CAF registry 

 Number of step-down CAFs that are not 
subsequently re-referred to Children’s Social Care 
after 6 months 

As indicator CAF registry 

 Number of step-down CAFs that are not 
subsequently re-referred to Children’s Social Care 
after 12 months 

As indicator CAF registry 

 Percentage of CAFs that do not result in a service 
from Children’s Social Care within 6 months of the 
start of the CAF 

As indicator CAF registry 

 Percentage of CAFs that do not result in a service 
from Children’s Social Care within 12 months of the 
start of the CAF 

As indicator CAF registry 

Staff improvement   

 Percentage of staff time that is spent on face to 
face work with children, young people or families 

Amount of time spent by staff on face to face work 
divided by normal working hours 

Staff reporting 

 Percentage of staff time that is spent travelling Amount of time spent by staff on travelling divided by 
normal working hours 

Travel claim comparisons 

6
9



 Cost of travel expenses (compared to pre-locality 
period) 

Amount spent on travel expenses pre and post 
localities 

Travel Claim comparisons 

Intervention timeliness   

 %age of referrals achieved in appropriate time 
frame  for CAFs 

%age of CAF referrals completed within 20 days (not 
working days). 

CAF registry  

 
 
Satisfaction Measures 
 
Indicator Measure  Source & People 

Needs identified sooner   

 ‘Have things got better for you?’ %age of people reporting that things had improved for 
them. 

CAF registry 

 ‘Have things got better for your child?’ %age of people reporting that things had improved for 
their child. 

CAF Registry 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

7
0



 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Steve Rogers and Head of Improvement on (01432) 261772 

 

MEETING: CHILDREN’S SERVICES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

DATE: 11 MARCH 2011 

TITLE OF REPORT: STANDARDS IN THE EARLY YEARS 
FOUNDATION STAGE AND STANDARDS IN 
THE PRIMARY AND SECONDARY STAGES – 
FURTHER UPDATE 

REPORT BY:  HEAD OF IMPROVEMENT 

CLASSIFICATION: Open  

Purpose 

Following reports from the Head of Improvement to members of Children’s Services Scrutiny 
Committee on 22 October 2010 and 10 December 2010 on current school and early years foundation 
stage performance the Committee requested an update at a mid point in the academic year. 

Recommendation 

 THAT Children’s Services Scrutiny Committee notes the content of this update to the 
earlier standards reports and reflects on the actions to improve educational 
outcomes in the respective phases of early years settings and maintained 
schools in Herefordshire 

Key Points Summary 

• The Herefordshire School Improvement Policy and Early Years Improvement Policy was agreed 
in the summer term 2010 and have been implemented since 1 September 2010. 

• All Herefordshire schools and settings have been allocated an agreed category of performance 
(a four point criteria referenced scale set out in Herefordshire Council’s School and Early Years 
Improvement Policy) and appropriate interventions and support have been determined. 

• The performance of all schools in Herefordshire is formally reviewed six times a year at forum 
meetings attended by CYPD officers and the SIP.  

• Schools in categories 1 and 2 receive regular (at least once a term) monitoring visits from their 
SIP.  Early years settings receive an annual visit from an early years consultant and access 
support through termly network meetings and monthly training. 

• Schools and settings in category 3 receive more frequent visits and agree a support plan with 
the school improvement service, the impact of which is continually monitored by the SIP/EYC 
and SIA. 

AGENDA ITEM 10

71



 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Steve Rogers and Head of Improvement on (01432) 261772 

 

• Schools and settings in category 4 receive frequent visits and agree a rapid recovery plan with 
the school improvement service. The impact of interventions and improvement activity is 
continually monitored by the SIP and SIA and formally reviewed at monthly progress check 
meetings which include the head teacher, chair of governors, SIP and SIA. 

• Statutory performance targets (progress and attainment) have been agreed with all schools for 
2011 and 2012. 

• The Ofsted inspection profile of schools and settings in Herefordshire is improving. The number 
of schools in an Ofsted category of concern has fallen from six to two in this academic year. The 
proportion of schools judged good or outstanding is increasing. The primary details are shown 
in table 1.  The inspection profile of High Schools remains particularly strong and is improving.  

• The next key milestone for national testing will be the summer 2011 early years profile results 
and school test and examination results. 

Alternative Options 

1 There are no alternative options. 

Reasons for Recommendations 

2 The report is presented as an overview and impact of current actions and interventions to 
improve the educational outcomes of children and young people in Herefordshire.  

Introduction and Background 

Early Years Foundation Stage 

3 The Early Years Foundation Stage is the national statutory framework for early years 
education for all children 0-5 years. The framework incorporates the statutory welfare 
requirements and guidance on learning and development across six areas: 

• Communication, language and literacy,  

• Personal, social and emotional development, 

• Problem solving, reasoning and numeracy 

• Creative Development 

• Physical Development 

• Knowledge and Understanding of the World. 

4 The first statutory assessment of children’s progress comes at the end of the Reception year 
at school when children are 5 years old. It is measured and reported under the Early Years 
Foundation Stage profile.  

5 In 2010 the gap in attainment for the most vulnerable children under five in Herefordshire 
narrowed to be in line with national expectations. However, the target relating to the 

72



 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Steve Rogers and Head of Improvement on (01432) 261772 

 

percentage of children achieving a good level of development in the aspects listed above 
(paragraph 3) was not met and declined slightly against the previous year’s performance. 

6 As reported to Scrutiny in October 2010, an investigation was carried out to examine the 
disappointing early years outcomes in Herefordshire. 40% primary schools reported errors in 
the data submitted to the Local Authority. Further investigation highlighted that the systems for 
submission of the early years data were inadequate, and school staff were unclear about the 
interpretation and use of early years data. Actions were put in place to address gaps in 
systems for data collection and in improving practitioner knowledge and understanding of the 
Early Years Foundation Stage Profile. 

7 Following investigation by national bodies - The National Strategies and Qualifications and 
Curriculum Development Agency (QCDA) it was agreed and recorded that there were 
“anomalies” in the data and that the 2010 data does not reflect the quality of intervention and 
support offered within the Local Authority. The QCDA judged the LA moderation of the Early 
Years Assessment process to be good. 

Primary 

8 The first statutory assessment of children’s progress comes at the end of the Reception year 
at school when children are 5 years old. It is measured and reported under the Early Years 
Foundation Stage profile. This is followed at age 7 by statutory Key Stage 1 assessment, 
measured through moderated teacher assessment and informed by the results of national 
tests.  

9 Achievement data was summarised in the autumn term scrutiny paper. The Local Authority 
does not collect mid year information on attainment and progress and this report cannot 
therefore comment on whether achievement is improving or deteriorating across the county. 
Individual discussions with schools will happen through summer term SIP meetings and this 
information taken alongside the key stage 1 and 2 end of year data will be used to make a 
comment on achievement at that time. 

10 National tests are undertaken at the end of key stage 2 in the summer term.  Results are 
collected and made available for schools and local authorities.  

11 The Local Authority uses the information from both national tests/examinations and Ofsted 
inspections of schools to inform planning and to measure effectiveness.  A key role is to 
pinpoint where additional support is needed, and to identify the good practice to be shared. 

Secondary 

12 The next key milestone for national testing will be the summer 2011 examinations for schools 
at KS4 and KS5.  

13 Some schools operate an early entry policy or undertake modular examinations in some 
subjects and these will count towards the final outcomes for that cohort of students. Feedback 
from these early entry and modular tests has been very encouraging. 

73



 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Steve Rogers and Head of Improvement on (01432) 261772 

 

Key Considerations 

Early Years Foundation Stage 

Table 1 Summary and Interim Evaluation of Actions Taken: 

Proposed Actions (Scrutiny Report Oct. 2010) Interim Evaluation Report (February 2011) 

Introduction of new systems for the collection, 
analysis and submission of the early years 
foundation stage profile data in 2010. The new 
system is known as E-Profile and is used by most 
other Local Authorities.  

 

All Herefordshire Primary Schools have been 
advised to use ‘eProfile’ to collect and analyse 
early years profile data. Training has been 
provided by the Early Years Improvement Advisor 
and Early Years Profile Moderation Manager at 
six workshops (October – December 2011) or 
during school visits. 

□ EYFS Teachers (55) 
□ Headteachers (3) + New Heads (7) 
□ School Improvement Partners (10) 

 

 Impact: All schools that participated in training 
are now using EProfile and have given positive 
feedback. Training in the use of Early Years 
Profile Data will be included in Head Induction 
Training, Governor Training and for staff new to 
the Early Years Foundation Stage. An audit of 
Primary Schools (February 2011) is being carried 
out  to assess use of EProfile. 

Introduction of a training programme for Head 
Teachers, School Improvement Partners, Local 
Authority Advisors and Consultants to ensure 
consistent advice is given, and the profile data is 
used effectively to analyse and present standards 
in early years. 

 

All Primary Schools provided with the 
Herefordshire Early Years Profile Data Pack 
which can be used to support analysis of 
provision and practice in Reception Classes. 

Every Primary School was offered support from 
an Early years Consultant to analyse the 2010 
data at child level.  

12 Schools accepted the offer of a 1:1 
discussion. Two Heads requested telephone 
conversations.  

70 delegates attended an ‘EYFS/KS1 Transitions’ 
conference. Speakers from QCDA and The 
National Strategies (21/01/11) 

Ongoing support and challenge to ensure 
EYFS/Year 1 teachers are making accurate 
judgements, collecting information, using and 
applying the data to inform their provision and 

100% Reception Teachers to attend cluster 
moderation meetings in Spring Term. Trained 
moderator to attend each cluster meeting and to 

74



 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Steve Rogers and Head of Improvement on (01432) 261772 

 

practice. 

 

collect Spring Term data and record outcomes. 

30% schools to receive Moderation Visits in 
Summer Term. 70% schools to attend group 
Moderation Meeting in Summer term. 

Extension of the pilot programme to track 
progress of children attending pre-school settings 
so that accurate information on children’s 
learning and development is provided on entry 
into school. 

 

Pilot Programme ‘Progress Matters’ extended 
across all group settings. Format to be included 
in 2011 county-wide Transition Document. 

 

Early Years Entry Profile piloted in reception 
classes. Positive feedback from reception 
teachers, Heads and Ofsted Inspectors. Entry 
profile format now provided to all Herefordshire 
Primary Schools. 

Support for strengthened quality improvement 
arrangements in children’s centres ensuring early 
identification and intervention for vulnerable 
groups. 

 

Children’s Centre Reviews completed in two 
centres. Highlighted gaps in systems for data 
collection, consistency and cohesion across the 
county. Since September 2011 a Children’s 
Centre Steering Group has been established. 
Data for Children’s Centres is now collated 
centrally and presented as a Data Profile updated 
on a quarterly basis. An annual cycle of Quality 
Improvement has been introduced which will 
support self evaluation processes, target setting 
and focused improvement. 

Strengthening engagement of parents in 
children’s early learning and development. A 
particular focus on the development of children’s 
speech and language through the ‘Every Child a 
Talker’ DFE funded project in preschools and the 
Communication, language and literacy DFE 
funded programme in schools. 

‘Lets Talk’ training for parents and EY 
Practitioners   (26 parents/11 Practitioners) 

Speech and Language Support for Under Fives 
2x 10 week course (66)                                         
2 day overview for Leaders and Managers (48) 

‘Getting Started’ training for parents in Children’s 
Centres (36 Parents) 

25/26 Early Language Lead Practitioners will 
complete training in March 2011 and will support 
delivery of the county wide programme of early 
language support for Under Fives.  

Partnership Project with Bookstart to promote 
Under Fives and Family membership of Libraries. 
Reported in Herefordshire Matters. 

‘Letters and Sounds’ Parent Workshops in 8 
Primary Schools involved in CLLD Intervention 

75



 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Steve Rogers and Head of Improvement on (01432) 261772 

 

Project. 

Improving the accuracy of observations and 
assessments in early years. Introduction of E-
Profile, a new EYFS data collection and analysis 
tool, with associated training for Heads, Teachers 
and LA Advisory Teams. 

 

Observation and assessment workshops  
delivered at monthly training for Early Years 
Teachers/Practitioners. 100 delegates attended 
and took away resources (Early Years Entry 
Profile Pack, Progress Matters Record Sheets 
and Vulnerability Matrix) Heads, Teachers, 
Practitioners reported piloting assessment tools, 
gave positive feedback and have requested 
‘Progress Matters’ is now used county-wide as a 
‘Transition Document’. 

Moderation Team trained by QCDA to support 
accurate observation and assessment using 
eProfile (February 2011) 

Reorganisation of the Early Years team to raise 
standards and ensure early identification of 
vulnerable groups. The team will need to be 
flexible in order to meet changing needs in line 
with new guidance and funding arrangements 
from the DFE. 

 

Improved links between Early Years Settings and 
Schools with Children’s Centres.  

Multi-Agency Group meetings to support CAF 
and early support for vulnerable groups. 

All settings/schools have access to a named 
Early Years Consultant who is qualified and 
experienced in Safeguarding, Special Education 
and Early Intervention. 

 

The Current situation in Herefordshire 

14 Ofsted report (December 2010) that the quality (overall effectiveness) of Herefordshire early 
years PVI provision exceeds national statistics with 72% good/outstanding compared to 69% 
nationally: 

 

 

 

 

76



 

15 There has been an increase in the numbers of good/outstanding PVI settings from 59.6% in 
August 2008 to 72% in December 2010. Every PVI setting in Herefordshire is now subject to a 
graduated programme of support and challenge so this upward trend should continue. 

16  Interim Profile data (Teacher Assessments) will be collected in the Spring Term.  

17 Anecdotal reports suggest that Herefordshire Primary Schools expect to see a strong 
improvement in the numbers of five year olds attaining a ‘good level of development’ in July 
2011, in line with the target set. 

18 All Primary Schools/settings have identified those children at risk of delay and are delivering 
early intervention programmes and focused improvement plans to address gaps in provision 
and practice. Progress is monitored using ‘Development Matters’ and collected at 
school/setting level.   

19        Interim data for the ‘Every Child a Talker’ intervention programme in early years indicates that 
the % of children at risk of speech and language delay decreased from 19.5% to 12.75% 
following early language intervention from a trained Early Years Practitioner. The % of children 
identified as being ‘ahead’ with speech and language increased from 13.75% to 22.25% 
following intervention. 

20      100% Home-based Childcare (Childminders) judged by Ofsted who are in receipt of Nursery 
Education Funding are part of the Local Authority Network and are all judged 
good/outstanding.  

21 Inspection outcomes for all Childminders inspected between 1st September 2008 and 31st 
December 2010: 

  
 

 

 

22 A new ‘Pathway to Quality’ has been introduced for all new childminders to ensure that they all 
enrol in the LA network and work towards the Quality Mark accreditation. The Early Years 
Quality Improvement Programme of support and challenge now applies to all existing 
childminders and has been targeted at those with a satisfactory outcome. 

23 A focus on Early Years Education is necessary to improve standards and close the gap for 
children in Herefordshire. The Profile data indicates that 56% of children in Herefordshire are 
starting school without a ‘good level of development’ and 59% boys start school with a risk of 
speech and language delay which will impact on their learning in primary and secondary 
schools. Early speech and language intervention programmes are having an impact but this 
needs to be reflected in the profile/KS1 data. 

24 A coordinated approach to early years provision and practice is needed. All those working with 
children under five across children’s services must be clear about the vulnerabilities that affect 
children’s learning and development, and work together to ensure that those children can be 
identified (effective and accurate data collection) can be supported (Universal and targeted 
delivery of research based early intervention programmes) and tracked to show the impact 
and outcomes of the interventions.  

77



 

Primary 

Table 2 Summary and Interim Evaluation of Actions Taken 

Proposed Actions (Scrutiny Report Oct. 2010) Interim Evaluation Report (February 2011) 

Improving all subjects at key stage 1 with a 
particular emphasis on improving the 
performance of boys especially in reading and 
writing. Intervention programmes such as ECAW, 
ECAR, ECC and Numicon will help in addressing 
this. As will the early years CLLD phonics focus. 

No mid year data is collected from schools but 
meetings with SIPs and SIAs focus on 
discussions on pupil progress.  

The SIP visit for the spring term will specifically 
focus on provision and will look at the 
effectiveness of intervention programmes. 

Schools have now started the specific 
intervention programmes (ECAW, ECAR, ECC 
and Numicon) and are reporting significant 
improvement in pupil progress.  

 

Improving the quality of leadership in schools to 
ensure that all pupils make the required progress 
and achieve well. Tightening up of SIP visits at 
school will ensure that leadership receives the 
rigour of effective challenge and support. 

At the Primary Forum meeting with SIPs in 
January it was decided to alter the categorisation 
of some of the schools. There are now 55 
schools in category 1 and 2 support, compared 
with 52 previously and 26 in category 3 and 4 
compared with 29.  

All SIP reports have been completed for the 
Autumn term 2010. 

Early headship provision meetings have taken 
place and are part of a package for Headteachers 
to develop leadership skills. Feedback from these 
sessions has been very positive. 

Improving the quality of governance to ensure 
that the leaders in schools are challenged and 
supported to drive improvements in standards. 
The setting up of a larger governor service will 
ensure that the delivery of key training will 
develop governor skills to focus on school 
improvement issues. 

The newly extended and appointed Governors 
Service Team has been shadowing school 
improvement advisors in delivery specific support 
to schools. A package of support including a new 
website to support governor development and a 
revised training programme are nearing 
completion. 

Improving the transition between EYFS and NC 
SIA and Sips will work closely with schools to 
ensure that Headteachers ensure an effective 
transition between early years and the first year 
of the National Curriculum. 

The training provided for SIPs in January 
included a focus on EYFS and the link into the 
National Curriculum. Three Early Years/ Key 
stage 1 consultants have been appointed as part 
of the restructuring of the CYPD. 

78



 

 
Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Steve Rogers and Head of Improvement on (01432) 261772 

  

  

Improving all subjects at key stage 2 with a 
particular emphasis on improving the progress of 
all pupils in maths and the performance of the 
more able in the subject. Key interventions such 
as the national 1:1 intervention will ensure that 
targeted support will be effective in accelerating 
progress and improving standards, The MAST 
training for teachers will improve teacher subject 
knowledge and will build up a team of teachers to 
support other schools in developing teacher 
subject knowledge in maths, 

No mid year data is collected from schools but 
meetings with SIPs and SIAs focus on 
discussions on pupil progress.  

The SIP visit for the spring term will specifically 
focus on provision and at the effectiveness of 
intervention programmes. 

1029 pupils in Herefordshire at Key stage 2 are 
being supported through the 1 to 1 intervention 
programme. This includes children with EAL and 
LAC. 

LA consultants will deliver focussed bespoke 
training and support for schools in targeting 
appropriate intervention to help move all pupils 
who achieve 2C at key stage 1 to level 4 at key 
stage 4, along with moving all pupils who achieve 
level 3 to a level 5 

All schools being supported by LA consultants 
have agreed School Support Plans or Rapid 
Recovery Plans. Targeted consultancy is defined 
in these plans. These are being monitored 
regularly to ensure impact of actions. 

 

Ofsted updates 

25 Since September 2010 the following Primary Schools have been inspected. 

26 The table above shows that the nearly all schools inspected since September have improved 
their judgement grades, with one school moving two judgement grades. 

Table 3 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

School  Previous  Ofsted 
Overall Effectiveness 

Judgement 

New  Ofsted Overall 
Effectiveness 
Judgement 

Pencombe 2 – Good 1- Outstanding 

Brockhampton 3 - Satisfactory 2 – Good 

Weobley 3 - Satisfactory 2 – Good 

Ledbury 3 - Satisfactory 2 – Good 

Kingstone and 
Thruxton 

Notice to Improve 3 - Satisfactory 

Little Dewchurch Special measures 2 – Good 

Wellington 3 - Satisfactory 3 - Satisfactory 

79



 

 

 

Update on attendance 

27 Over the last two years absence levels rose slightly in the primary phase and went above 
national and regional averages for the first time. Persistent absence rose slightly (by 0.3 % 
points) but remains below national and regional averages.   

28 The LA has recently purchased Attendance Analysis software which will facilitate remote 
analysis of current attendance in Herefordshire primary schools.  This will, capacity 
notwithstanding, enable the Education Welfare Service to respond more proactively to 
changes in attendance patterns where they give cause for concern. 

 
29 New guidance and advice to schools has been issued relating to holiday absence in term time. 

Most schools discourage parents wherever possible from removing their children from school 
during term time for family holidays. 

 
30 The other action we are about to embark upon is a greater focus on transition and attendance; 

again a cluster approach seems sensible. 

80



 

 
Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Steve Rogers and Head of Improvement on (01432) 261772 

  

  

Secondary 

Table 4 Progress with the priorities for the secondary team identified in the previous scrutiny report: 

Proposed Actions (Scrutiny 
Report December 2010) 

Interim Evaluation Report (February 2011) 

Implement the new and revised 
school improvement policy and 
ensure that appropriate support is 
allocated for schools to ensure that 
they continue to improve. 
 
Ensure that any decline in school 
performance is addressed early so 
that all Herefordshire high schools 
remain in a positive Ofsted category. 
 
Work in partnership with schools to 
consolidate the advances made in 
improving the performance of 
disadvantaged groups of students. 
 
Focus challenge and support on key 
areas such as continuing 
improvement in Mathematics and 
English. In particular share effective 
practice and strategies to improve 
the outcomes of boys and narrow 
the performance gaps between boys 
and girls. 

§ The secondary desk top review took place in 
December 2010. This included the Pupil Referral Units 
and the Special schools with secondary provision and 
excluded the Herefordshire Academy and the Steiner 
Academy as they are monitored through the DFE. 
Using the new School Improvement Policy 
Categorisation (not a direct parallel with Ofsted 
Judgements) a discussion and agreement in relation to 
school categorisation took place.   

§ Category 3 and 4 schools are being closely monitored 
and supported by SIS. 

§ Feedback from School Improvement Partners and 
head teachers was overwhelmingly positive about this 
process. 

§ A further forum meeting has taken place with category 
3 and 4 schools to ensure that there are secure plans 
in place to improve identified aspects of performance.  

§ The School Improvement Service is deploying staff and 
financial resources to support schools in meeting the 
targets for improvement agreed.  

§ The programme to develop and support school based 
intervention centres continues successfully. 

Continue to work with the 
Herefordshire LA data team to 
further develop the systems for 
benchmarking school performance 
at key stages four and five. 
 

§ This is underway. The school data profiles have been 
updated in November following the publication of the 
validated data sets.  

Work closely with the 11-19 
Integrated Service to develop the 
recently established school sixth 
form heads’ network.  
 

§ The heads of sixth forms are keen to develop this network 
and a further meeting has been planned. The network will 
become self sustaining and the LA will act in an advisory 
role as commissioned.  

Continue to work with school sixth 
forms to support their further 
improvement. 
 

§ The School Improvement Service is working closely with 
two sixth forms and deploying resources (financial and 
personnel) to support their identified areas for 
improvement. 

81



 

Work in partnership with schools, 
supporting head teachers and 
governing bodies in responding to 
national initiatives such as the 
academies programme and local 
imperatives such as the increasing 
development of alternative school 
models. 
 

§ Both Wigmore schools (Primary and High) and John Kyrle 
High School became Academies on the 1st January 2011. 

§  Both schools have expressed a desire to continue to work 
closely with the LA.  

§ John Kyrle High School Head teacher continues to be a 
School Improvement Partner for another High School in 
the LA and is engaging their current LA School 
Improvement Partner for the rest of this academic year. 

Commission external expertise to 
advise SACRE on the statutory 
revision of the Agreed Syllabus for 
Religious Education. Support its 
implementation. 

§ This revised syllabus is near completion and will be 
launched in the summer term for schools to implement in 
September 2011. 

 

Ofsted updates 

31 Since December 2010 full section five Ofsted inspections have taken place in John Masefield 
High School, Lady Hawkins High School and Weobley High School. Subject inspections in 
English and Geography have taken place in Kingstone High School and Queen Elizabeth High 
School. Because the inspections are recent and the inspection judgements have not been 
quality assured and signed off by Ofsted they remain confidential and cannot be reported. 
However the outcomes are positive and Herefordshire continues to have no high schools in a 
negative Ofsted Category. 

Update on Attendance. 

32 Validated data for the autumn term 2010 from the DfE expected in March. 

33 Validated data for 2009-10 indicates the following: 

High School Overall Absence 2009-10. 

• Herefordshire’s overall absence continues to fall year on year in line with national and 
statistical neighbour trends 

• Overall absence in Herefordshire high schools was at its lowest since 1999-2000 
 

High School Persistent Absence 2009-10. 

• This also continues to fall year on year in line with national and statistical neighbour 
trends 

• Overall Persistent Absence in high schools was at its lowest since 2005-6, the year  the 
measure was introduced 

 
Community Impact 

34 Effective early intervention can prevent speech and language difficulties, disaffection, mental 
health issues, obesity, challenging behaviours and low standards in later years. Accurate 
information and intervention in the early years will provide long term benefits to the child, the 
family and community.  

82



 

 
Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Steve Rogers and Head of Improvement on (01432) 261772 

  

  

35 Improving primary pupils’ achievement in the basic skills of English and maths will improve 
their life chances and consequently their contributions to the wider community. 

36 Declining pupil numbers and the financial limitations of the 2011/12 budget settlement for 
schools mean that some schools have to reduce their staffing and that there is often 
increasing competition between schools to attract admissions. 

Financial Implications 

37 The recent cuts in funding and removal by Central Government of grants which have 
previously support school improvement activity, mean that the Improvement Service and the 
support provided to improve performance will, from April 2011 have to be increasingly 
purchased by schools and settings through a Service Level Agreement (SLA).   

38 Statutory provision will continue to be provided at no cost.  

39 If the purchase of the services does not cover the costs then it is likely that parts of the service 
will cease. 

Legal Implications 

40 No legal implications have been identified. 

Risk Management 

41 The recently announced Government funding cuts, changes in statutory services and 
movement into traded services will affect the future of the Improvement Service and the form 
of support which it has historically provided to EYFS, Primary and Secondary settings. 

42 The ability to maintain a high quality service ensuring no Herefordshire school/setting is 
underperforming or in a negative Ofsted Category. 

Appendices 

Appendix 1 - Glossary 

Background Papers 

None. 

 

 

83



 

 

 

 

Appendix 1  

Glossary 
 
CLLD  Communication, language and literacy development 
 
CYPD  Children and Young People’s Directorate 
 
EAL  English as an additional language 
 
ECAR  Every Child a Reader 
 
ECAW  Every Child a Writer 
 
ECC  Every Child Counts 
 
EYC   Early Years Consultant 
 
EYFS  Early Years Foundation Stage 
 
LAC  Looked after children 
 
MAST  Mathematics Specialist Teachers 
 
NC  National Curriculum 
 
SIA  School Improvement Advisor 
 
SIP  School Improvement Partner 
 
SIS  School Improvement Service 

 

84



 
Appendix 2 

 
Early Years  

 
 LA SN Na 
NI 72 - % pupils achieving "good level of development" 45% 57% 56% 
NI 92 - inequality gap 33% 31% 33% 
 

KS2 
 

KS2  English & Maths English Maths 
  LA SN Na LA SN Na LA SN Na 
Level 
4+ 71.4% 72.6% 74.0% 79.2% 80.2% 81.0% 77.9% 79.0% 80.0% 
Level 
5+ 19.5% 20.9% 23.0% 31.0% 31.4% 33.0% 30.4% 32.2% 35.0% 

 
KS4 

2010 Performance of Herefordshire Local Authority compared to Statistical 
Neighbours and England (National)  

       
% pupils achieving 

Name 

Level 2 (5+ 
A*-C) (or 
equivalent) 
including 
English 

and maths 
GCSEs 

English 
Baccalaureate 

A*-C 
GCSE 
in 

English 
and 
maths 

English 
and 
maths 
Skills 
at 

Level 2 

Level 
2 (5+ 
A*-C) 

2 
grades 
A*-C in 
science 

Gloucestershire 60.1% 21.2% 60.7% 63.8% 76.1% 63.2% 
Dorset 59.4% 21.0% 60.3% 61.1% 74.3% 61.3% 
Shropshire 57.8% 18.9% 58.3% 61.4% 72.6% 61.8% 

Herefordshire 
Local Authority 
Average 56.0% 20.3% 56.3% 57.7% 81.2% 71.4% 
Wiltshire 55.8% 18.8% 56.5% 58.9% 70.9% 57.8% 
East Sussex 55.4% 14.0% 56.2% 57.7% 76.3% 64.0% 
England 
Average (state 
funded schools 
only) 55.2% 15.1% 55.4% 59.4% 76.1% 61.6% 
Devon 54.7% 14.4% 55.3% 57.3% 68.7% 56.8% 
Somerset 54.0% 14.4% 54.0% 56.4% 68.6% 57.1% 
Cornwall 53.8% 10.1% 54.3% 57.2% 73.0% 57.9% 
Norfolk 52.3% 15.4% 52.9% 56.9% 67.1% 52.9% 
Suffolk 51.7% 13.6% 52.2% 53.5% 71.0% 62.0% 
 

85



86



 

 
Further information on the subject of this report is available from 

Rob Reid, Head of Access & Capital Commissioning on (01432) 260920 
  

$o30rhwbh.doc  

MEETING: CHILDREN’S SERVICES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

DATE: 11 MARCH 2011 

TITLE OF REPORT: CAPITAL BUDGET REPORT 

UPDATE ON 2010/2011 & FUNDING FOR 2011/12 

REPORT BY: HEAD OF ACCESS AND CAPITAL 
COMMISSIONING  

CLASSIFICATION: Open  

Wards Affected 

County-wide  

Purpose 

To scrutinise the capital budget position for 2010/11 for the Children & Young People’s Directorate 
and to receive information on indicative capital funding for 2011/12.  

Recommendation(s) 

 THAT Committee note and comment on the report as part of its scrutiny function. 

Key Points Summary 

• The 2010/11 capital programme is on schedule, both in terms of time and budget. 

• The Indicative 2011/12 capital allocations for Herefordshire show an 80% decrease in schools’ 
devolved formula capital allocations.  Although, in part, this is due to the Government 
allocating the bulk of capital maintenance grant to the Local Authority, rather than to schools, 
the overall capital allocation for 2011/12 is about £1.4 million below the 2010/11 allocation. 

Alternative Options 

1 This is a monitoring report and therefore alternatives are not provided.  

Reasons for Recommendations 

2 To provide sufficient information and opportunity for scrutiny committee to scrutinise the 
capital programme for children and young people’s directorate. 

AGENDA ITEM 11

87



Introduction and Background 

3 This is an exception report on the key areas of progress, achievement and challenge within 
the capital programme for 2010/11.   The planned capital expenditure for 2010/11 is 
£31,459,000.  Indicative capital funding for 2011/12 is detailed in paragraph 4.2.     

 

Key Considerations 

4.1 Schemes with an expected outturn exceeding £500k in 2010/11 

 Scheme 2010/11 Forecast 

£’000 

Spend to end  

Quarter 3 
(December) 
£’000 

Comments 

Hereford Academy 13,256 8,684 Work in progress scheme on schedule, both 
time and budget  

Earl Mortimer Replacement 
School 4,171 3,624 Work in progress scheme on schedule, 

both time and budget 

Co-location 3,328 1,152 Seven schemes are progressing at various 
locations on schedule, both time and budget.  

Devolved Capital 
Programme 1,900 1,369 Devolved allocation of capital funding to 

schools 

Intervention Centres 1,823 1,005 14 schemes at high schools are progressing 
on schedule, both time and budget 

Primary Grant 1,500 358 

This grant is funding the amalgamation of 
Leominster’s junior and infant school and the 
following schemes: 
Credenhill St Mary's CE - £50,000 - 
Classroom extension 
Walford - £69,700 - secure 
entrance/relocate reception and head's office 
Almeley - £130,000 - replace temporary 
classroom with permanent build/secure 
entrance/relocate head's office  
Ashperton - £100,000 - replace temporary 
classroom/secure entrance 
Clifford - £20,000 - sheltered outdoor 
learning space 
Bodenham St Michaels CE - £11,000 - 
access ramps 
Lugwardine - £31,000 - extension to 
classroom 
Goodrich - £35,000 - teaching space for 
small group work/music to release space in 
school hall for PE etc.  
 

TCF Standards and 
Diversity 675 76 Rural funding towards plant and equipment 

costs 

Early Years Childcare / 
Quality & Access 508 512 Various schemes to complete in 2010/11 

88



 

Condition property works 600 571 

Annual programme of works at various sites 
committed on a highest need first basis, 
budget under pressure due to decreased 
funding allocation this year 

Children’s Centres 717 255 

Springfield children’s centre completes soon, 
Coningsby (Leominster) and Broadlands 
(Hereford) are scheduled to complete this 
year 

Total  28,478 17,606  

 

4.2 Indicative capital funding grants 2011/12 

4.2.1 The national context 

4.2.1.1 On 13 December 2010, the Secretary of State announced details of allocation of over 
£2 billion of capital funding for 2011-12 to schools and local authorities. 

4.2.1.2 The announcement included details of allocation of: 

• £800 million of basic need funding to local authorities to provide school 
places where needed in their area, in all categories of taxpayer-funded 
schools i.e. Local Authority maintained schools, academies and free 
schools. 

• £858 million of maintenance capital to local authorities to support the needs 
of the schools that they maintain and for the Sure Start children’s centres in 
their area  

• £196 million of locally-coordinated Voluntary Aided schools programme 
capital to support the maintenance capital needs of voluntary-aided schools  

• £185 million of devolved formula capital for schools.  

4.2.1.3 £800 million basic need funding has been allocated according to relative need for new 
places, based on forecast data provided by all authorities. All taxpayer-funded schools 
within each local authority will be eligible for this funding, including voluntary-aided 
schools, open academies, and new Free Schools where they address basic need 
pressures. 

4.2.1.4 The proportion of the funding available for capital maintenance which has been 
allocated to each authority has been determined by school and weighted pupil numbers 
from the most recent data available. The voluntary-aided sector has been allocated a 
fair share based on pupil numbers, and reflecting the governors’ 10 per cent 
contribution and eligibility for VAT. Allocations have been abated where schools have 
been or are about to be modernized through Building Schools for the Future or PFI 
projects. 

4.2.1.5 £185 million devolved formula capital funding has been allocated direct to all taxpayer-
funded schools based on a national formula of £4,000 per school and a per pupil sum 
which is weighted for the type of pupil: £11.25 (primary), £16.875 (secondary), £33.75 
(SEN).  This is a much lower rate than previously.  For most schools, devolved formula 
capital has reduced by 80% on previous years’ funding levels.  The Audit Commission 

89



criticised the allocation of large amounts of funding to schools that was not targeted to 
building need. Therefore, in view of the need to prioritise, the Government has 
balanced the bulk of maintenance funding to local authorities, to support local priorities 
and larger projects, with coordinated and efficient procurement.  

4.2.1.6 Allocations at local authority level are indicative and will be adjusted in line with end-of-
year pupil figures in maintained schools. 

4.2.1.7 All these programmes will be delivered as capital grant. 

4.2.1.8 Allocations for 2012/13 until 2014/15 will be informed by the outcome of the 
Government’s capital review, which the Department for Education has said will be 
published in early 2011. While the allocation and management for these programmes 
may change to reflect the recommendations of the review, it is expected that the 
funding available for basic need and capital maintenance of schools will be roughly in 
line with the funding for 2011/12. 

4.2.2 Herefordshire Local Authority indicative allocations – 2011/12 

Grant 

Indicative allocation 
2011/12 

 (£000) 

2010/11 allocation for 
comparison 

(£000) 

Difference 

 (£000) 

Basic Need 2,154 458 1,696 

Capital Maintenance 
– Local Authority 

Maintained Schools 2,696 1,949 747 

Capital Maintenance 
– Locally Co-

ordinated Voluntary 
Aided Schools 

Programme 907 1,032 (125) 

Schools Access 
Initiative 0 286 (286) 

Devolved Formula 
Capital 679 3,589 (2,910) 

Harnessing 
Technology 
(Devolved to 

schools) 0 545 (545) 

Total 6,436 7,859 (1,423) 

 

4.2.3 The Local Authority will work with schools, through the CYPD Capital Strategy Consultative 
Group, to allocate Basic Need and Capital Maintenance funding, using the CYPD Capital 
Strategy format and assessment tool.  This approach was used successfully to allocate the 
first tranche of primary strategy capital money, detailed above and involves school, 

90



Archdiocese and Diocesan representatives. 

Community Impact 

5 The capital investment programme of the Children and Young People’s Directorate, including 
schools and early years settings, has wide ranging community impacts, benefiting children and 
young people and their families across Herefordshire. 

Financial Implications 

6 These are contained in the body of the report.   

Legal Implications 

7 The use of capital funding including grants must comply with the legal requirements 
associated with each funding stream and the conditions of specific grants  

Risk Management 

8 The risks are set out in the body of the report, in terms of project delays and the actions 
planned to mitigate the impact of these.  

Consultees 

9 Not applicable.  

Appendices 

10 None. 

Background Papers 

• None identified. 

91



92



 

 
Further information on the subject of this report is available from 

Steve Rogers, Head of Improvement: Tel (01432) 261772 
 

 

MEETING: CHILDREN’S SERVICES SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE 

DATE: 11 MARCH 2011 

TITLE OF REPORT: EXECUTINVE RESPONSE TO SCRUTINY 
REVIEW OF PUPIL ACHIEVEMENT IN 
SWIMMING AT KEY STAGE 2 

PORTFOLIO AREA:  ICT, Education and Achievement 

CLASSIFICATION: Open  

Wards Affected 

County-wide. 

Purpose 

To note the Cabinet Member – ICT, Education and Achievement, response to the Scrutiny 
Review of Pupil Achievement in Swimming at Key Stage 2. 

Recommendation 

 THAT the Committee note the decision of the Cabinet Member – ICT, Education 
and Achievement to accept all the recommendations arising from the 
Scrutiny Review of Pupil Achievement at Key Stage 2. 

Key Points Summary 

In accordance with the scrutiny process the Executive, in this case through the 
Cabinet Member – ICT, Education and Achievement, has considered and accepted 
all the recommendations from the Scrutiny Review of Pupil Achievement in 
Swimming at Key Stage 2. 

Alternative Options 

No alternative options are suggested as the Cabinet Member has approved all the 
recommendations from the Review. 

Introduction and Background 

1 Arising from a number of debates at the Committee on the provision of swimming 
tuition at schools the Committee at its meeting on 6 July 2009 set up a Scrutiny 
Review Group to look at pupil achievement in swimming at Key Stage 2 and 
establish baseline data against which future trends could be compared.  Subsequent 
Committee meetings received reports and a presentation was received on 14 June 
2010 from the Chief Executive, HALO the provider of swimming facilities to schools in 

AGENDA ITEM 12

93



the county. 

2 The Scrutiny Review Group met on 20 August 2010 and took into consideration 
information previously supplied to or considered by the Committee.  The Review 
Group were also informed about the DfES publication “Swimming Charter” which 
provided information to schools, sports and recreation departments within local 
authorities on how to work and plan effectively, with guidance on how to encourage 
more children to take part in swimming.  A report by the Assistant Director, 
Improvement and Inclusion, setting out the provision in Herefordshire schools was 
also taken into consideration. 

3 The Chairman of the Review Group, Councillor WLS Bowen, presented the findings 
and recommendations of the Review Group to the Children’s Services Scrutiny 
Committee on 1 October 2010.   

4 The Committee agreed that the recommendations be forwarded to the Executive for 
consideration namely: 

a. That 88% of pupils attaining the 25 metre swimming distance target by the 
end of year 6 be used as a local comparator for future benchmarking and 
trend monitoring; 

b. That officers be requested to investigate the least disruptive means for 
schools to submit swimming data on an annual basis and data be compared 
to the data held by HALO; 

c. Results from the data collected be included in the performance monitoring 
report to Children’s Services Scrutiny Committee and any anomalies should 
then be investigated as the Committee considers appropriate; 

d. Officers should investigate whether the local partnership between public, 
private and voluntary sectors were making the most efficient use of their 
swimming resources. 

5 The Cabinet Member, ICT, Education and Achievement, considered a report dated 
25 January 2011, setting out the background and recommendations from the Review 
referred to him by the Children’s Services Scrutiny Committee. 

6 The Cabinet Member, ICT, Education and Achievement, has approved the 
recommendations arising from the review and his decision has been recorded in the 
decision notice Ref No2011 ICT&A.001.  

7 Officers will now be investigating methods of collecting swimming data and once the 
data received has been analysed the results will be reported to Committee as part of 
the Performance Monitoring Report.  Officers will also be investigating the efficient 
partnership use of swimming recourses by the public, private and voluntary sectors. 

Appendices 

13  None. 

Background Papers 

• None. 

94



 

 
 Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
 Paul James, Democratic Services Officer, on 01432 260460 

 

MEETING: CHILDREN’S SERVICES SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE 

DATE: 11 MARCH 2011 

TITLE OF REPORT: COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME 

REPORT BY:  Democratic Services Officer 

CLASSIFICATION: Open  

Wards Affected 

County-wide. 

Purpose 

To consider the Committee’s work programme. 

Recommendation 

 THAT subject to any comment or issues raised by the Committee the 
Committee work programme be approved and reported to the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee. 

Introduction and Background 

1.  The Overview and Scrutiny Committee is responsible for overseeing, co-ordinating 
and approving the work programmes of the Committee, and is required to periodically 
review the scrutiny committees work programmes to ensure that overview and 
scrutiny is effective, that there is an efficient use of scrutiny resources and that 
potential duplication of effort by scrutiny members is minimised.   

2.  The work programme, set out at appendix 1, may be modified by the Chairman 
following consultation with the Vice-Chairman and the Director in response to 
changing circumstances. 

3.  Should any urgent, prominent or high profile issue arise, the Chairman may consider 
calling an additional meeting to consider that issue. 

4.  Should Members become aware of any issues they consider may be added to the 
scrutiny programme they should contact the Democratic Services Officer to log the 
issue so that it may be taken into consideration when planning future agendas or 
when revising the work programme. 

5. To enable the Committee to track the result of previous recommendations Appendix 
2 is attached for information only.  Where possible this includes a comment by the 
relevant officer on the current position concerning the issue at the time of going to 
print. 

AGENDA ITEM 13

95



 

Background Papers 

• None identified. 

 

96



Children’s Services Scrutiny Committee - Work Programme - 2010/11 
For consideration by Committee on 11 March 2011 

 
 
 

11 July 2011 at 10.00am 

 • Capital Budget Monitoring. 
• Revenue Budget Monitoring 
• Performance Digest 
• Committee Work Programme. 

Scrutiny Reviews -- 
 
 

26 September 2011 at 10.00am 

 • Standards in the Early Years Foundation Stage 
and Standards in the Primary and Secondary 
Phase – Full report. 

• Capital Budget Monitoring. 
• Revenue Budget Monitoring 
• Performance Digest 
• Committee Work Programme. 

Scrutiny Reviews -- 
 
 

9 December 2011 at 10.00am 

 • Capital Budget Monitoring. 
• Revenue Budget Monitoring 
• Performance Digest 
• Committee Work Programme. 

Scrutiny Reviews -- 
 
 

March 2012 at 10.00am 

 • Capital Budget Monitoring. 
• Revenue Budget Monitoring 
• Performance Digest 
• Committee Work Programme. 

Scrutiny Reviews -- 
 
Possible future items on: 

• Be Healthy’ issues (obesity / alcohol / lifestyle/housing/ CAMHS/ psychology 
service) also consider inviting members from Health Scrutiny. (see minutes  
June 2010) 

• The 14 – 19 Strategy 
• Foundation and Academy Schools 
• Governance arrangements for the Children’s Trust and partnerships. 
• Delivery plans to be submitted to Committee for the Children and Young 

People Plan. 
• Monitor the sustained year-on-year impact of the Children and Young 

Peoples’ Plan in relation to Gypsy, Roma and Traveller children (GRT) 
(Minute 19 1st Oct 2010) 

 
97



In consultation with the Chairman and Vice-Chairman the Director of Children’s 
Services is working up a programme of open seminars for Members based on 
defined themes. 
 
Suggested themes or Issues identified by the Director for future seminars 
 
Date Subject 
To be confirmed 
 

Economic Well Being: 14-19 Strategy. 

To be confirmed Positive Contribution:  Targeted / Integrated Youth 
Services 

To be confirmed Enjoy and Achieve:  Attendance 
To be confirmed Herefordshire and its comparators 
To be confirmed The changing interrelationship and pressures on the 

Directorate Central Service following changes to 
school management  (academies, free schools, 
federations etc and the affect on Traded Services) 
(see minute 46 10/12/10) 

 

98



APPENDIX 2 
 
Progress in response to recommendations made and issues requiring action 
raised by the Children’s Services Scrutiny Committee. 
 
 
 
Committee date: 1 October 2010 
 
 

Government Initiatives in Children’s Service 

Recommendations Response/Action 

b) the Committee Recommends 
that the Cabinet Member(s) 
consider whether the Youth 
Service can provide any 
support towards those 
Playbuilder schemes ready to 
proceed so that the impetus at 
community level isn’t lost. 

 

In December 2010 the Council 
announced that the funding for the 
playbuilder schemes already in progress 
would continue.   

 
 
 
Committee Date: 22 October 2010 
 

Sustainable School Provision for 21st Century 

Recommendations Response/Action 

That the report be noted and the 
Committee suggests to the 
Cabinet Member that school 
clusters that have not yet 
responded be reminded of the 
importance of their comments and 
urge a prompt reply 

Clusters have undertaken a lot of good 
work.  The interim Director of Children’s 
Services is currently discussing with 
governors, heads and other stakeholders 
how to best progress next steps at a 
school cluster locality and local authority 
level.   

 
 
Committee Date 10 December 2010 

Performance Digest Quarter 2 

Comment Response/Action 

While debating the Performance 
Digest for Quarter 2 the 
Committee requested a briefing 
note to clarify the post 16 
transport funding position 

Work in progress  
 
 

 

99



100


	Agenda
	
	4 MINUTES
	6 Report on the results on the consultation on priorities for the Children and Young People's Plan 2011 - 2014
	7 Revenue Budget Monitoring Report 2010/11
	Revenue Appendix A Jan 2011 v1 0
	Revenue Appendix B Jan 2011 v1 0
	Revenue Appendix C Jan 2011 v1 0
	Revenue Appendix D Jan 2011 v1 0

	8 Performance Digest Quarter 3 2010/11
	Q3 Performance Digest rpt - Appendix 2

	9 Children and Young People Directorate Reorganisation
	10 Standards in the Early Years Foundation Stage and Standards in the Primary and Secondary Stages - Further Update
	Standards in Schools Appendix 2

	11 Capital Budget Monitoring Update on 2010/2011 and Funding for 2011/2012
	12 Executive Response to Scrutiny Review of Pupil Achievement in Swimming at Key Stage 2
	13 Committee Work Programme
	work programme - Appendix 1
	Work Programme -  Appendix 2


